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Form 52-109FT2 - Certification of Interim Filings during Transition Period

I, Karen M. Watson, Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer, certify that:

1. Ihave reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument
52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings) of
ATCO Ltd. (the issuer) for the period ending June 30, 2005;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is
necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under
which it was made, with respect to the period covered by the interim filings; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as
of the date and for the periods presented in the interim filings.

Date: July 22, 2005

[Original signed by K.M. Watson]
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ATCO LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars except per share data)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
. June 30 . June 30
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenues 2 $ 630.5 $ 7312 $1.445.1 $1.957.6
Costs and expenses
Natural gas supply 2 5.2 190.2 134.4 753.9
Purchased power 2 10.3 26.0 22.8 71.6
Operation and maintenance 311.2 240.4 - 599.1 496.8
Selling and administrative 53.7 384 102.8 88.0
Depreciation and amortization 80.8 72.7 168.4 1535
Interest k 41.3 39.6 - 83.1 79.3
Interest on non-recourse long term debt 15.6 12.9 314 26.4
Dividends on preferred shares 1 2.1 2.1 4.3 43
Franchise fees 29.3 272 81.9 77.0
549.5 . 649.5 1,228.2 1,750.8
§1.0 81.7 216.9 206.8
Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses 2 bo- 633 - 63.3
Interest and other income 11.9 7.3 20.5 - 141+
Earnings before income taxes and . £
non-controlling interests 92.9 152.3 2374 2842
Income taxes 31.7 40.2 86.0 ’ 89.1
61.2 1121 151.4 195.1
Non-controlling interests 33.1 57.3 80.7 102.1
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class IT shares 2 28.1 54.8 70.7 93.0-
Retained earnings at beginning of period 1,132.2 1,018.2 1,101.0 990.4
1,160.3 1,073.0 1,171.7 1,083.4°
Dividends on Class I and Class II shares 114 10.4 22.8 20.8
Purchase of Class I shares 2.5 4.4 2.5 4.4
Eelained earnings at end of period $1,146.4 $1,058.2 $1,146.4 $1,058.2
Earnings per Class I.and Class II share 4 $ 094 $ 184 $ 236 $ 312
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class II share 4 $ 093 $ 182 $ 233 $ 3.08
$ 0.38 $ 035 - $ 076 $§ 070

Dyividends paid per Class I and Class IT share
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ATCOLTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

June 30 December 31
Note 2005 2004 2004
) LT e o (Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS ‘
Current assets
Cash and short term investments- S 7 $ 815.0 $ 6493 $ 760.9
Accounts receivable B T 356.4 3955 430.8
Inventories 94.7 125.1 189.4
Income taxes recoverable 22 - -
Future income taxes 01 - 0.3
Deferred electricity costs 6.3 - -
Prepaid expenses 25.3 33.0 26.8
] 1,300.0 1,202.9 1,408.2
Property, plant and equipment: - 5451.3 5,274.4 5,407.7
Goodwill 71.2 71.2 71.2
Security deposits. for debt 22.0 243 23.1
Other assets - 127.5 124.6 129.3
j L ) $6,972.0 © "$6,697.4 $7,039.5 -
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY L . .
Current liabilities .
Bank indebtedness o C t T8 280 0 % 63 $ 7112
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3168 3425 340.3
Income taxes payable - 12.9 42.6 .
Future income taxes o T . 7.0 BRI
Deferred natural gas cost recoveries - L 24 , 0.9,
Deferred electricity cost recoveries ) T - 32.8 =117 -
Long term debt due within one year- : . 40 I 1}.2 3.9
Non-recourse long term debt due within one year 59.1 55.4 - 55.8
S 407.9 470.5 468.4,
Future income taxes T - C 2218 0 02173 -237.6
Deferred credits o 7 2289 1092 163.0
Long term debt 2,124.9 19808 22153
Non-recourse long térm debt R I © 7T B3R v 939.8 - o 0 8997
Preferred shares ' T T Bt G “150.0° ©* * 150.0° 150.0-
Non-controlling interests= Cos e e 0 ae v 22 1,688.7 il 1,628.9. . 1,660.9
Class I and Class II share owners"“equity e s - - me e e e
Class I and Class II shares S 4 147.6 139.0 144.2
Contributed surplus T o T B I+ el 0.7 0.7
Retained earnings 1,146.4 1,058.2 1,101.0
Foreign currency translation adjustment (3.6) 3.0 (1.3)
1,291.2 1,200.9 1,244.6
$6,972.0 $6,697.4 $7,039.5
2 ATCO



_ ATCOLTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH F LOWS
{Millions of Canadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
" (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Operating activities ‘ ‘
Earnings attributable to Class T and Class II shares .8 281 $ 548 $ 70.7 $ 93.0
Adjustments for: ' ‘

Depreciation and amortization 80.8 727 168.4 153.5

Future income taxes 0.4 1.0 3.5 (1.6)

Non-controlling interests 33.1 30.7 . 80.7 75.5

Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses

- net of income taxes and non-controlling interests 2 - (28.5) - (28.5)

Deferred availability incentives ) 4.9) (29.2) 1.2 21.1)

TXU Europe settlement - net of income taxes 7 (18.0) - 39.1 -

Other . : 5.4 . 1.9 8.3 6.3
Cash flow from operations 124.9 1014 3719 277.1
Changes in non-cash working capital (43.2) 15.4 83.6 176.7

‘ 81.7 116.8 455.5 453.8

Investing activities : : »
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (138.9) -(166.1) (243.4) (297.6)
Proceeds on transfer of retail energy supply businesses . :

- net of incoine taxes 2 434 22,5 43.4 225
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment . 04 5.7 1.5 8.5
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant’ - 11.9 12.6 21.3 29.4°
Non-current deferred electricity costs 2.0 2.2). (8.3) (11.9)
Changes in non-cash working capital 2.7 13.9 (30.1) 4.1
Other 3.3) (0.8) 3.7 (3.8)

(91.2) (114.4) (219.3) (248.8)
Financing activities ; ‘
Issue of long term debt 0.2 20 44.8 244.8
Issue of non-recourse long term debt I 47 - 12.5
Repayment of long term debt (132.1) (105.5) (137.4) (106.3)
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt -(9.0) 6.5) (28.9) (25.4)
Issue (purchase) of Class A shares by subsxd1ary (0.6) (3.4) 0.8 (2.4)
Issue (purchase) of Class I shares (0.5) (32 0.8 2.9
Dividends paid to Class I and Class Ii share owners (11.4) (10.4) (22.8) (20.8)
Dividends paid to non- controlhng mterests ’ ' 25.7) (25.2) (51.5) (50.3)
Changes in non-cash working capital 0.2 0.5 1.4 2.0
Qther (0.4) 1.0 (0.8) (1.4)
(179.3) (146.0) (193.6) 49.8
Foreign currency translation (4.0) (0.1) (5.3) 1.9
Cash position . N
Increase (decrease) <. (192.8) (143.7) 37.3 256.7
Beginning of period 979.8 786.7 749.7 386.3
End of period $787.0 $643.0 $787.0 $643.0

) Cash position consists of cash and short term investments less current bank indebtedness, and includes
$125.2 million (2004 -'$57.7 million) which is only available for use in joint ventures (see Note 7).
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ATCO LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005
(Unaudited, Tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)

1. Financial statement presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemerits. have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in the Corporation’s Financial Information contained in its 2004 Annual
Report. These interim financial statements have been prepared using the same accounting policies as used in the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, except as described below.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) guideline pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities. The guideline requires the
Corporation to identify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary
beneficiary of such entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the
consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA recommendations pertaining to the
classification of retractable or mandatorily redeemable shares. The recommendations require the Corporation to
classify a contractual obligation as a liability when _the number of the Corporation’s own shares required to settle the
obligation varies with changes in their_fair value sg that the Corporat1on may have to “deliver more or fewer of its
shares than would have been the case at the date of entering into the obligation. The Series 3 preferred shares
represent such an obligation in that each Series 3 preferred share will on and after December 1, 2011 be convertible
at the option of the owner into that number of the Corporation’s Class I Non-Voting shares determined by dividing
$25.00 together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the then current market
prxce of the Class I Non-Voting shares. Consequently, the equity preferred shares have been reclassified to preferred
shares in the balance sheet and the dividends on equity preferred shares have been reclassified to dividends on
preferred shares in the statement of earnings.

Due 1o the seasonal nature of the Corporatlon s operatlons changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the timing of
rate decisions, the consohdated statements of earnings and retained edmnifigs for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2005 and June 30, 2004 are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annualbasis: =~ -+ - - -

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
2. Transfer of retail energy supply businesses

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectwely “DEML"), a subsidiary of Centrica plc. Proceeds of the
transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005.
Net proceeds, after adjustments related to legal, transition and other deferred costs pertaining to the transfer ‘of the
retail energy supply businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3 million before income taxes of $8.2 million and non-
controlling interesis of $26.6 rmlhon and increased eammgs by $28 S million for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2004 ' , Co S

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004 were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued to purchase natural gas on
behalf-of DEML until the transfer of th& televant. ATCO Gas natural, gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004: .There. will be no ongoing.impact_on eamings resultmg from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “no-margin’ " basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used to
deliver energy.
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3. ATCOR Resources Ltd. income tax reassessment

On March 3, 2005, the Supreme Court of Canada dismissed the Corporation’s application for leave to appeal and
decided not to hear the Corporation’s appeal of a $6.7 million income tax reassessment relating to its 1996 disposal
of ATCOR Resources Lid. (“ATCOR™).

In 2001, the Corporation received and paid an income tax reassessment of $8.4 million relating to the 1996 disposal
of ATCOR. The Corporation did not agree with this reassessment and appealed the matter to the courts.

In August 2003, the Corporation was successful in its appeal to the Tax Court of Canada. The Federal Government
appealed the Tax Court’s decision to the Federal Court of Appeal, which issued a decision on June 18, 2004 in favor
of the Corporation for $1.7 million of the $8.4 million reassessment. The Federal Government did not appeal the
Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. The Corporation completed its application for
leave to appeal the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada in October 2004.

Due to the -uncertainty as to whether the Supreme Court cf Canada would hear the Corporation’s -appeal, the
Corporation charged $6.7 million to earnings in its 2004 consolidated financial statements. Therefore, there will be
no material effect to the Corporation’s 2005 consolidated financial statements as a result of the Supreme Court of
Canada’s decision to not hear the Corporation’s appeal.

4, ClassI and Ciass Il shares

There were 26,508,310 (2004 — 26,236,830) Class I Non-Voting shares and 3,476,172 (2004 — 3,502,852) Class II
Voting shares outstanding on June 30, 2005. In addition, there were 880,000 options to purchase Class I Non-
Voting shares outstanding at June 30, 2005 under the Corporation’s stock option plan. From July 1, 2005, to
July 22, 2005, no stock options were granted, 2,700 stock options were exercised, no stock options were cancelled
and no Class I Non-Voting shares have been purchased under the Corporation’s normal course issuer bid.

The average number of shares used to calculate earnings per share are as follows:

- Three Months Ended Six Months-Ended - -

.. June 30 June 30
2065 - ~2004 - - 20305 2004 - -
Weighted average shares outstanding = v 29,971,112 29,785,533 7 29,955,670 29,794,764
Effect of dilutive stock options 384,943 417,118 363,439 435,318
Weighted average dilutive shares outstanding 30,356,055 30,202,651 30,318,509 30,230,082

5. Empleyee future benefits .. . o .

In the three months ended June 30, 2005, net exbense of $2.31 million (2004 — $0.7 million) was recognized for
pension benefit: plans and net expense of $1.3 million (2004 — $1.3 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans. ‘ : ‘

In the six months ended June 30, 2005, net expense of $4.8 millioh (2004 — $1.2 million) was recognized for

pension benefit plans and net expense of $2.5 million (2004 — $2.1 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans. ~
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6. Segmented information

Segmented results - Three months ended June 30

2005 Power Global Corporate  Intersegment

2004 Utilities  Generation  Enterprises  Industrials and Other Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues - external $230.5 $192.9 . $1389 $67.1 $ 1.1 $ - $630.5
© $408.2 $1573 $1171 0 8475 $ 1.1 $ - $731.2
Revenues — 5.9 - 27.6 - 3.1 (36.6)
intersegment 5.2 . - 128.8 0.1 2.5 (136.6) -
Revenues , $2364 . $1929 $166.5 $67.1 $ 42 $ (36.6) $630.5
3413.4 $157.3 $245.9 | 347.6 $ 3.6 $(136.6) $731.2
Earnings attributable
to Class 1 and $ 81 $ 11.3 $ 94 $ 31 $(3.8) $ - $ 28.1
Class I shares $ 363 $ 93 $ 65 $ 2.6 $(0.5) $ 06 $ 54.8
Segmented results ~ Six months ended June 30
2005 Power Global Corporate  Intersegment
2004 Utilities  Generation  Enterprises  Industrials and Other - Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues - external  § 658.6 $ 3879 $271.2 $125.3 $ 21 $ - $1,445.1
o, 812877 8 x33(').'5 $241.2 $ 962 $ 20 $ - $1,957.6
Revenues — : 10.0 B .. 534 R 6.2 (69.6)
intersegment 10.0 - . 2804 Q.1 5.5 (296.0) .-
Revenues $ 668.6. $ 387.9 $324.6 $125.3 $ 83 $ (69.6) $1,445.1
$1,297.7 $ 3305 $521.6 $963  § 75 $(296.0) $1,957.6
Earnings attributable . ‘ _
to Class I and $ 311 $ 230 $ 186 $ 7.3 $ (9.2) $ (01) $ 707
Class II shares $ 622 $ 179 $ 12.0. $ 6.1 $ (6.3) $ 1.1 $ 93.0
Total assets $3,310.3 $2,461.3 $283.5 $234.6 $630.7 $ 516 $6,972.0
$3,247.3 $2.416.9 $3004 $164.3 $501.8 $ 66.7 . $6,697.4
Allocation of $ 465 § 231 $ 16 $ - $ - $ $ 712
goodwill $ 465 $ 231 $ 1.6 $ - 3 - $ $ 71.2

7. TXU Europe settlement . . ... . ‘.00 0

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court:against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by the
1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation,-through Barking Power
Limited (“Barking Power”), has a 25.5% equity interést. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of
contract related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating
plant. Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement has now been reached with respect to Barking
Power’s claim. " C

On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million (approximately
$410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104 million. Barking
Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30, 2005, of which the
Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. An income tax payment of $15.3 million relating to the Corporation’s first
distribution was made in April 2005. The Corporation expects to receive further distributions later this year and in
the first quarter of 2006. The Corporation’s share of this settlement is expected to generate earnings after income
taxes and non-controlling interests of approximately $35 million, which will be recognized over the remaining term
of the TXU contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $5.5 million per year.
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ATCO Ltd.

, MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”)

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition-and results of operations of ATCO Ltd. (the
“Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited interim financial statements for the
six months ended June 30, 2005, and the audited financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 (2004 MD&A”). Information
contained in the 2004 MD&A that is not discussed in this document remains substantially unchanged. Additional
information relating to the Corporanon including the Corporation’s Annual Information Form, is available on
SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The equity securities of the Corporation consist of Class I Non-Voting Shares (“Class I shares”) and Class II Votin g
Shares (“Class II shares™).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ATCO Ltd. and all of its subsidiaries. The principal
subsidiaries are Canadian Utilities Limited (“Canadian Utilities™), of which ATCQ Ltd. owns 39.9% of the Class A
non-voting shares and 74.2% of the Class B common shares, for an aggregate ownership of 51.8%, and ATCO
Structures Inc. (“ATCO Structures™), ATCO Noise Management Ltd. (“ATCO Noise Management”™) and ATCO
Resources Ltd. (“ATCO Resources”™), of which ATCO Ltd. owns 100% of the Class A non-voting and Class B
common shares. Canadian Utilities has published its comparative financial statements and its management’s
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for six months ended June 30, 2005. Copies
of these documents may be obtained upon request from the Corporate Secretary of Canadian Utilities at 1400 ATCO
Centre, 909-11% Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R 1NG6 (telephone (403) 292-7500 or fax (403) 292-7623).

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Forward-Looking Information ................... e eheteeretteeteetre iy et iveeate e ehetrase et easeRtess et e ereette e eeEeeateateseeeasa e e ers et eseersenaentens 3

Busiriess Of the COTPOTATION .e.veiviiiitiee e et reesesine s esres e sreeesres e see st banseseesee st sansaseseash e sebee s st ssseeresaenstesneessennesnses 3

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supp]y Busmessns .............................. 3

TXU BUrope SEUIEIMENT ...c.oviiiiiiieidieret it s e s ecsaessesaseseraesreseiaese b tneseshassst e easaseaneasessessesbotessansessasesasseesessaasenesbensases 3

Selected Quarterly Information... . .

Results of Operations ..o, OO SOOI OO ORI .
COnSOHAALEA OPEIALIOMS ...vvoveereitiriierieiirietr sttt seeetebrase st e e sk tabe st s be st be s bebesetne e st saasbe s st e s e be st et sbnansbesbeseraannens
Segmented Information , , :

UHHHES vt enad TP PO RO U U OO OO R U PO PP TP PSP P PRTOROPRPPN
Power Generation ............. e ttereenertesereteeberaraatenttes e beeeabte e nbeserraaarr et adesnrarse et besanee eveieree et e e e nrae e breseeaenees
Global Enterprises-i.............. FOT RPN e et rrereere ey
Industrials.....ccooviviiiiiiiieees eeteertrerereiabedesshantbteeeeesanetees forraeae et raneeat s reeeea e nens faeeennantaeeeeartee eereenten e e aanes
" Corporate and Other .......ivvcicrierronn. et SO et
ATCOR Resources Ltd. Income Tax ReasseSSImMENT.......ccveeiiriimieeriniineeiereenrenneene st sbcneieseesseseesesnensensesnns 12

Regulatory MAatters .....cocovverrvieiiicreriirienienecesresseseseeseasessenes e bbb e 12
ATCO EIECHIC ...ttt st sc et sesse s se s hee et a b oot et sn st s re et et steb ot s b emeo s s eatanemeasenenraeensnanens 13
ATCO GAS ettt et e bbb st e bbb e ne e st e b et e s Ceveenen e 13

Liquidity and Capital RESOUICES .....c.veetrireirieriricreriteieeriese st seseretees e teber s seese st sesstesecsbseressaessscaesstessesesensesserscnenees 14

Outstanding Share Data.........cccoviviviinnennne. oo e e et ne s et ettt e be st aene s 16

Business RiskS....occoecnvveniniccininens ettt e st nee b ekt er et ee SR e RS R e R bR se e R R e e bR b eh e b e st aE e anerenaenes 16
Regulated Operations :.............. ettt e e et aesee e e taae b et e st aets hee b et ane b e ket e e R e e et ese s s nae s badr e et ey ee e s ne et e nene s 16
Non-Regulated OPErations .......ociieiiiiiiiiiii it e eessre s st ssre e b n e e senessases st sane e 18

Critical Accounting EStImMAtes.....c.occocoiurerriiecrirrnceriine s craseseesnseseneas TP PSPPI U RSPV PTPTTOROP 19

Changes in Accoummg POIICIES ..o T e s 20

2 ATCO



FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward- ooking statements. Forward-looking statements are
often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “plan”, “estimate”, “expect”, “may”,
“will”, “intend”, ‘“should”, and similar expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in
such forward-looking statements. The Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such
forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon. -

EEIT) LTS

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking 'statements pertaining to purchase obligations, planned capital
expenditures, the impact of changes in government regulation, non-regulated generating capacity subject to long
term contracts and Industrials Business Group market developments. The Corporation’s actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, competitive
factors in the industries in which the Corporation operates, prevailing economic conditions, and other factors, many
of which are beyond the control of the Corporation.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from three Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation
and Global Enterprises. For the purposes of financial disclosure, industrial transactions (ATCO Structures and
ATCO Noise Management) are accounted for as ‘Industrials and corporate transactions are accounted for as
Corporate and Other (refer to Note 6 to-the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended June 30,
2005). Transactions between Busmess Groups are eliminated in -all reporting of the Corporation’s consolidated
financial information.

TRANSFER OF THE RETAIL ENERGY SUPPLY BUSINESSES

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of Centrica plc (“Transfer of the
Retail Energy Supply Businesses”). Proceeds of the transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at
closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005. Net proceeds, after adjustments related to legal, transition and
other deferred costs pertaining to the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3
million before income taxes of $8.2 million and non-controlling interests of $26.6 million, and increased earnings by
$28.5 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2004. . .

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004, were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued to purchase natural gas on
behalf of DEML, until the transfer of the relevant ATCO Gas natural gas purchase. contracts-to DEML was
completed in September 2004. There will be no ongoing impact on earnings resulting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “no-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and elecmmty distribution systerns used to
deliver energy. .

TXU EUROPE SETTLEMENT

On November 19,2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by the 1,000
megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power Limited
(“Barking Power™), has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of contract
related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating plant.
Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement has now been reached with respect to Barking Power’s
claim. On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million
(approximately $410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104
million. Barking Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30,
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2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. An income tax payment of $15.3 million relating to the:
Corporation’s first distribution was made in April 2005. The Corporation expects to receive further distributions
later this year and in the first quarter of 2006. The Corporation’s share of this-settlement is expected to generate
earnings after income taxes and non-controlling interests of approximately $35 million, which will be recognized:
over the remammg term of the TXU contract to September 30, 2010, at approx1mately $5.5 million per year.

The Barking generating plant has continued to supply 725 megawatts of power under long term contracts with other
purchasers. The 275 megawatts of power previously supplied to TXU Europe is currently being sold into the United
Kingdom electricity market on a merchant basis under a one year marketing agreement expiring September 30,
2005. On July 4, 2005, this agreement was extended for an additional year to September 30, 2006.

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION

For the Three Months Ended

($ Millions except per share data) = . Mar.31  Jun. 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31
‘ ' e (unaudited) )
2005
Revenues (1) ..ovveiicveicine e, et ettt 814.6 630.5 s e,
Eamings attributable to Class I and Class II shares (4) (5) ........... ’ 42.6 281 e e
Earnings per Class I and Class II share (4) (5) «v..coovvvrerrerernennanne. 1.42 S 094 il e,
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class II share (4) (5)..c.ccovvveenne. - 1.40 093 e
2004
REVENUES (1) 1riririeiiiinirirsiesesaeesre et ibete s b eve st e s e s e nse e asesaesnes 1,226.4 731.2 597.0 716.4
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares (2) (4) (5)...... © 382 54.8 24.7 41.7
Eamings per Class I and Class IT share (2) (4) (5)coovvvvveerencnnneen 1.28 1.84 0.83 140
Diluted eamnings per Class I and Class II share (2) (4) (5) cvovevene. 1.26 1.82 0.83 - 1.38
2003 ‘ : e Co
REVENUES .vvcvvir ittt et e ees e ns st eesbes b eaie e s 652.8 996.5
Eamings attributable to Class I and Class IT shares (3) (4) (5) ........... et e 225 42.5
Earnings per Class I and Class IT share (3) (4) (5)..vrovvcisioeirennes cveerveneienes oveerieensens 0.75 143
‘Diluted earnings per Class I and Class II share (3) (4) (5) ....... el e 0.74 141
Notes:’

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on: May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Eléctric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

(2) Includes earnings of $28.5 million, earnings per share of $0.96 and diluted earnings per share of $0.95 on the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses for the three months ended June 30, 2004.

(3) 2003 earnings attribuiable to Class I and Class Il shares have been restated for retroactive changes in the
methods of accounting for asset retirement obligations and stock based compensation.

(4) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods. : .

(5) Due to the seasonal nature cf the Corporation’s operctions, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate deczszons earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operanons on an annual
basis.

(6) The above data has been prepared in dccordance wuh Crmadzan generally accepted accounting prmczples and
the repornng currency is the Canadian dollar. ,
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal factors that have caused variations in revenues and earnings over the eight most recently completed
quarters disclosed in the 2004 MD&A remain substantially unchanged, except for the lower cost of service revenues
in Alberta Power (2000) from the H.R. Milner generating plant which was sold by the Alberta Balancing Pool on
January 29, 2004, and changes in market conditions which have impacted ATCO Midstream’s earnings from natural
gas liquids and storage operations.

Consolidated Operations

Revenues, earnings attributable to Class I and Cléss 1I shares, and eamnings and diluted earnings per share were as
follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
L - June 30 June 30
($ Millions except per share data) ' 2008 2004 2005 2004
(unaudited)
ReEVENUES (1) ittt et et sba et e e 630.5 731.2 1,445.1 1,957.6
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares (2) (3) (4)........... 28.1 54.8. 70.7 93.0
Earnings per Class I share and Class II share (2) (3) (4) .vvevecnceeenn, 0.94 1.84 . 2.36 - 312
Diluted earnings per Class I share and Class I share (2) (3) (4)........ 0.93 1.82 1233 - 3.08

Notes:

(1 ) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of nawral gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’” and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly. ‘

(2) Includes earnings of $28.5 million, earnings per share of $0.96 and diluted earnings per share of $0.95 on the

- Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2004.

(3) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(4) Due 1o the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations,. changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(5) The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting prmczples and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar. . . .

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2005, d_ecreased by $100.7m'111ion fo $630.5 million,.primarily due
to: .
e lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no- margln” basis by ATCO

Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and

¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extractlon in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:

¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Australia, Europe South America and the
United States; . :

e improved merchant performance in ATCO Power s United ngdom (“U. K ”) operations, natural gas fuel
purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis, and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement;

e higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold;

s increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek; and

e operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004.
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Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $512.5 million to $1,445.1 million, primarily due

to:

lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and
lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:

increased business activity in ATCO Structures operatrons in Austraha Europe, South America and
Canada;

higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold; '

improved merchant performance in ATCO Power s UK. operatrons and the ‘impact of the TXU Europe
settlement;

increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek; and

operations at ATCO Power's and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brrghton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004.

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class TI shares for the three months ended June 30, 2005, were $28.1 million
($0.94 per share). Earnings for the corresponding period in 2004 were $26.3 million ($0.88 per share), excluding
the $28.5 million after-tax and non-controlling interests gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses
in May 2004. Earnings for the three monttis ended June 30, 2004, including the 1mpact of the transfer of the retail
energy supply businesses, were $54.8 million ($1.84 per share).

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class 11 shares for the three months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the
impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, increased by $1.8 million, primarily due to:

improved business act1v1ty in ATCO Structures oper ations in Canada, Australia, South Amenca and the
United States;

higher margins for natural gas hqurds and higher storage earnings due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold;

the impact of the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (“AEUB”) decision adjusting'the 2001 and 2002
revenue requirements for changes in deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory
Matters — ATCO Electric section);

the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and

increased business activity, including work for new customers in ATCO I-Tek.

This increase was partially offset by:

higher costs in ATCO Structures operations in Europe;

increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes i Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices since March 31, 2005;

higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric that are not yet reflected in current
customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher depreciation and financing costs related
to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date ih 2005, and increased operating costs. Rate applications
were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate these higher costs in customer rates (“Timing
of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric 2005 Rate Appllcatrons”) (refer to Rogulatory Matiers — ATCO Electric
and ATCO Gas sections); and

warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the six months ended June 30, 2005, were $70.7 million
($2.36 per share). Earnings for the corresponding period in 2004 were $64.5 million ($2.16 per share), excluding
the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses. Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2004,
including the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, were $93.0 million ($3.12 per share).
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Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the six months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the
impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, increased by $6.2 million, primarily due to:

¢ improved business activity in ATCO Structures operations in, Canada Australia, South America and the
United States;

e  higher margins for natura] gas llqulds and higher storage eammgs due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold,

»  the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and

o the impact of the AEUB decision adJustmg the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in
deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section).

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ higher costs in ATCO Structures operations in Europe;
e Timing of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric 2005 Rate Applications;
* increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices smce December 31, 2004; and
*  warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Operating expenses (consisting of . natural gas supply, purchased power, operation and maintenance, selling and
administrative and franchise fee costs) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $112.5
million to $409.7 million, and by $546.3 million to $941.0 million, respectively, primarily due to:
o lower costs of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and .
¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas hqutds extraction in ATCO Midstream.
These decreases were partially offset by l
® increased business activity in ATCO Structures and
o  higher operating costs at ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant and ATCO Power s and ATCO
Resources’ Scotford generating plant and operatlons at their Brighton Beach generating plant which was
commissioned in July 2004. . :

“

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, mcreased by $8.1
million to $80.8 million, and by $14.9 million to $168.4 rrulhon respectlve]y primarily due to:
e capital additions in 2005 and 2004.

Interest expense for the three and six months, ended June 30, 2005 mcreased by $4.4 million to $56 9’ mﬂhon and
by $8.8 million to $114.5 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ interest on non-recourse financings for ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources Bnghton Beach generatmg
plant commissioned in July 2004; and
* interest on new financings issued in 2004 to fund capital expendttures in Ut111t1es operattons

Interest and other income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $4.6 million to $11 9
million and by $6.4 million to $20 5 ‘million, respectively, primarily due to:
 technical services income earned on a project in Indonesia by ATCO Structures,
e interest income on higher cash balances; and
¢ the recovery of ATCO Electric’s carrying costs and interest associated ‘with the AEUB decision adjusting
the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred 1ncome taxes (refer to Regulatory Matters
— ATCO Electric section).

Income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, including the $8.2 million of income taxes

resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004, decreased by $8.5 milliort to $31.7
million, and by $3.1 million to $86.0 million, respectively.
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Income taxes for the three months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting from
the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, decreased by $0.3 million to $31 7 million, primarily due to:
¢ favorable one-time income tax adjustments in 2005.

The decrease was partially offset by:
. higher eamings.

Income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting from the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $5.1 million to $86.0 million, primarily due to:
. higher earnings.

The interests of non-controlling share owners for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, including the
$26.6 million resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, decreased by $24.2 million to
$33.1 million, and by $21.4 million to $80.7 million, respectively.

The interests of non-controlling share owners for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the
$26.6 million resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $2.4 million, and by
$5.2 million, respectively, primarily due to:

¢ higher earnings in Canadian Utilities.

Segmented Information

Segmented revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, were as follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions) , ‘ 2005 2004 2008 2004
(unandited)
UHHHES (1)eerveenreerieeearensseseenssnssssissnsseessesssesssss s eeeessnssssssseennsnne 236.4 413.4 668.6  1,297.7
POWer GENETAION ...veeivrieiveiree i eriirireeesreerree st scresensastneseesieerrassesserenns 192.9 1573 387.9 330.5
Global ENterprises ......coooovevecrmerrecnivnmnneereennerencenas 166.5 245.9 324.6 521.6
INAUSTHALS 1.veeceire et e 67.1 476 - 1253 96.3
Corporate and Other ' ‘ : 4.2 36 8.3 7.5
Intersegment eliminations " (36.6) (136.6) (69.6) (296.0)
Total.............. et er ettt et en b et e ereeaetenttensetsatente e antan st ennerensens 630.5 731.2 1,445.1 1,957.6

Note: '

(1) Prior 1o the Transfer of the Retail Eriergy Supply Busmesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
électricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for thezr customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.
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Segmented earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005
were as follows:

For the Three ~° For'the Six
Months Ended _Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions) 2005 2004 - 2005 2004
. (unaudited)
Utilities (1) s [OOSR - 81 36.3 311 62.2
Power Generation 11.3 93 23.0 17.9
Global Enterprises 9.4 6.5 18.6 12.0
INAUSHIALS oo 31 2.6 7.3 6.1
Corporate and Other ......c.ovcrcvccrvnnenrennnn e e 3.8) (0.5) 9.2) 6.3)
Intersegment eliminations - 0.6 0.1) 1.1
Total.ovccicce e 28.1 54.8 70.7 93.0

Note:
(1) Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2004, include earnings of $28.5 million from the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses.

Utilities

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the three months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $177.0 million
t0 $236.4 million, primarily due to:
* .lower sales of electricity- and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004;
e lower natural gas volumes purchasgd for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
© sales service (commodity and transportation revenues) to transportation service only contracts
(transportation revenue); and
e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas, which were 12.4% warmer than normal, compared to 4.7% colder than
normal for the corresponding period in 2004.

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ the impact of the AEUB deolsxon adJustmg the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in
deferred income taxes recorded i 1n ATCO EICC[I‘IC (refer to Regulatory Matters - ATCO Electnc section).

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2005,'decrcased by $629.1 million to $668.6 million, primarily due to:

o lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004;

e lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
sales service (commodtty and transportation revenues) (o transportation service.only contracts
(transportation revenue); and

e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas, which were 6.1% warmer than normal compared to 0.2% colder than
normal for the corresponding period in 2004.

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ the impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in
deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
e  customer additions in ATCO Gas and
¢ higher franchise fees.

Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2005, were $8.1 million. Earnings for the corresponding period in
2004 were $7.8 million, excluding the $28.5 million after-tax and non-controlling interests gain on the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004. Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2004, including
the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, were $36.3 million.
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Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2003, excluding the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply
businesses, increased by $0.3 million, primarily due to:
e the impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in
~ deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters - ATCO Electric section).

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ Timing of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric 2005 Rate Apphcatrons and
«  warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2005, were $31.1 million:" Earnings for the corresponding period in
2004 were $33.7 million, excluding the $28.5 million after-tax and non-controlling interests gain on the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004. Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2004, including the
impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, were $62.2 million.

Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2003, excluumg the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply
businesses, decreased by $2.6 million, primarily due to:

¢ Timing of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric 2005 Rate Applications; and

e  warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

This decrease was partially offset by:

e the impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in
deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Erectrlc section);
and

¢ customer additions in ATCO Gas.

Power Generation

Revenues from the Power Generation Business Group for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, mcreased’
by $35.6 million to $192.9 million and by $57.4 million to $387.9 million, respectively, primarily due to:
~ & improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s United Kingdom (“U.K.”) operations, natural gas fuel
. purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis, and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and
. . operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant
_ commissioned in July 2004.

Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $2.0 million to $11.3 million, primarily due to:
* improved merchant eamings in ATCO Power's U.K. operations and the impact of the TXU Europe
settlement; and
o _operations at ATCO. Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004,

ThlS increase was partially offset by:
s decreased earnings in ATCO. Power’s U.K. operations as a result of a planned outage;
e decrease in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ earnings of $0.9 million due to lower prices on
electricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool and the related spark spread; and )
* impact of a favorable one-time income tax adjustment for ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Brighton
‘Beach generating plant in 2004.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the three months ended June 30, 2005, averaged $51.46 per
megawatt hour, compared to average prices of $60.15 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in
2004. Natural gas prices for the, three months ended June 30, 2005, averaged $6.97 per groajoule
compared to average prices of $6.62 per gigajoule for the corresponding per1od in 2004. The consequence
of lower electricity prices and higher natural gas prices was an average spark spread of $(0.82) per
megawatt hour for the three months ended June 30, 2005, compared to $10.50 per megawatt hour for the
corresponding period in 2004. The impact of the lower spark spreads was mmgated by lower generation
volumes in 2005.
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Spark spread is related to the difference between Alberta Power Pool electricity prices and the marginal
cost of producing electricity from natural gas.

Changes in spark spread affect the results of approximately 370 megawatts of plant capac1ty owned in
Alberta by ATCO Power and ATCO Resources out of a total world wide owned capacity of approxrmate]y
1,539 megawatts.

Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $5.1 million to $23.0 million, primarily due to:
¢ the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and
e operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Br1ghton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004.

This increase was partially offset by: ‘
e impact of favorable one-time income tax adjustments in 2004; and
e decrease in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ earnings of $1.2 million due to lower prices on
electricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool and the related spark spread.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the six months ended June 30, 2005, averaged $48.73 per
megawatt hour, compared to average prices of $54.48 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in
2004. Natural gas prices for the six months ended June 30, 2005, averaged $6.76 per gigajoule, compared
to average prices of $6.35 per gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2004. The consequence of lower
electricity prices and higher natural gas prices was an average spark spread of $(1.94) per megawatt hour
for the six months ended June 30, 2005, compared to $6.82 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period
in 2004. The impact of the lower spark spreads was mitigated by lower generation volumes in 2005.

During the three months ended June 30, 2003, Alberta Power (2000)’'s deferred availability incentive account
decreased by $4.9 million to $47.3 million. The decrease was primarily due to planned outages. During the three
months ended June 30, 2005, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, mcreased by
$0.3 million to $2.0 million.

During the six months ended June 30, 2005, Alberta PoWer (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
increased by $1.2 million to $47.3 million. The increase was primarily due to additional ava1lab1hty incentive
payments received for improved plant availability, partially offset by planned outages. " During the $ix months ended
June 30, 2005, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.4 million
to $4.1 million.

4

Global Enterprises

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group for the three and 'six months ended June 30, 2005, decreased
by $79.4 million to $166.5 million, and by $197.0 million to $324.6 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased in ATCO Midstream for ATCO Gas as a result of the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses; and .
¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas 11qu1ds extraction in ATCO destream

These decreases were partially offset by:

e higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold; and

e increased business act_ivity, includin g work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $2.9 mlllron to $9.4 million, and by $6.6
million to $18.6 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢  higher margins for natural gas liquids and higher storage earnings due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity i$ attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold; and
e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.
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Industrials

Revenues from the Industrials segment for the three months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $19.5 million to
$67.1 million, primarily due to:
e increased business activity m ATCO Structures operanons in Australia, }zurope South America and the
United States.

Revenues from the Industrials segment for the SiX months ended June' 30, 2003, mcreased by $29.0 million to
$125.3 million, primarily due to:
e increased business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Australia, Europe, South America and
Canada.

This increase was partially offset by: ,
o decreased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in the United ‘States.

Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, mcreased by $0.5 million to $3.1 million, and by $1.2
million to $7.3 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures.

Corporate and Other

Earnings for the three.and six months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $3.3 million to ($3.8) million, and by $2.9
million to (§9.2) million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices since March 31, 2005.

ATCOR Resources Ltd. Income Tax'Reassessment

On March 3, 2005, the Supreme Court of Canada dismissed the Corporation’s application for leave to'apneé] and
decided not to hear the Corporation’s appeal of a $6.7 million income tax reassessment relating to its 1996 disposal
of ATCOR Resources Ltd. (“ATCOR”).

In 2001, the _Cofporation received and paid an income tax ‘reas‘s_‘essment"of $8.4 million relating to the 1996 disposal
of ATCOR. The Corporation did not agree with this reassessmént'and'appealed the matter to the courts.

In August 2003, the Corporation was successful in its appeal to the Tax Court of Canada. The Federal Government
appealed.the Tax Court’s decision to the Federal Court of Appeal, which issued a decision on June 18, 2004, in
favor of the Corporation for $1.7 million of the $8.4 million reassessment. The Federal Government did not appeal
the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. The Corporation completed its application
for leave to appeal the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada in October 2004.

Due to the uncertainty. as to whether the Supreme Court of Canada would hear the Corporation’s appeal, the
Corporation charged $6.7 million to earnings in its 2004 consolidated financial statements. Therefore, there will be
no material effect to the Corporation’s 2005 consolidated financial statements as a result of the Supreme Court of
Canada’s decision to not hear the Corporation’s appeal. i .

REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operations-are conducted by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT), Northland
Utilities {Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and
Pipelines Ltd. and the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), all of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of
Canadian Utilities” wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc.

In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision. The decision cstablished a standardized approach
for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of return on common equity based upon a
return of 9.60% on common equity. This rate of return will be adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term
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Canada bond yield as forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average difference between the
10 year and 30 year Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported in the National Post. This adjustment
mechanism is the same as the National Energy Board uses in determining its formula based rate of return. The
AEUB will undertake a review of this mechanism for the year 2009 or if the rate of return resulting from the formula
is less than 7.6% or greater than 11.6%. The AEUB also noted that any party, at any time, could petition for a
review of the adjustment formula if that party can demonstrate a material change in facts or mrcumstances

The decision also established the appropriate capital structure for each utility regulated by the AEUB. The AEUB
determined that any proposed changes to the approved capital structure which result from a material change in the
investment risk of a utility will be addressed at ut1l1ty spec1f1c rate applications.

In November 2004, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 9.50% for 2005. The AEUB also
announced that the 2005 generic retumn on equity would only apply to utilities which file rate applications in 2003.
If no rate applications are filed, then existing return on common equity rates will continue to apply.

In July 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric filed applications with the AEUB addressing the impact on the 2003
and 2004 revenue requirements of the transfer of the retail energy supply business to DEML and the customer care
volume forecast for services provided by ATCO I-Tek Business Services for 2003 and 2004. In April and May
2005, the AEUB issued decisions which resulted in an increase to revenues and earnings of $2.4 million and $1.6
million, respectively.

In June 2005, as part of their rate applications, ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas subm]tted a filing to the AEUB that
addressed certain common matters. ATCO Pipelines is also a party to this filing as the concerns are common o all
three utilities. This filing included evidence regarding the appropriate ratemaking approach in the determination of
utility revenue requirements as well as treatment of deferred pension costs, executive compensation, head office rent
expense and the continued use of preferred shares as a form of financing for the three utilities. The AEUB has not
yet set a process for the filing and a decision is not expected until early in 2006.

ATCO Electric

In May 2005, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2005 and 2006 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. The application is based on common equity ratios of 33% for
transmission operations and 37% for distribution operations, as established by the AEUB in'its generic cost of
capital decision, and the AEUB’s 2005 generic rate of refurn on comumon equity of 9.50% for each of the test years.
A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not expected until early in 2006. In May and June
2005, ATCO Electric filed applications requesting interim refundable rates for distribution and transmission
operations, pending the AEUB’s decision on the general tariff application. - On July" 14, 2005, ATCO Electric
received a decision from the AEUB approving its réquested interim refundable rates for distribution operations. A
decision by the AEUB on the mtenm rate apphcat]on for transmlssmn operauons is expected in the third quarter of
2005.

In August 2002, the AEUB issued a decision in which it denied ATCO Electric’s application to adjust its 2001 and
2002 transmission and distribiition revenue requirements by $4.6 million for changes in the amounts of deferred
income taxes recorded. In November 2002, ATCO Electric filed a review and variance application of the August
2002 decision with the AEUB. In May 2005, the AEUB changed its August 2002 decision and allowed ATCO
Electric to increase its revenues and earnings by $4.6 million.

ATCO Gas

In May 2005, ATCO Gas filed a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. The application is based on a common equity ratio of 38%, as
established by the AEUB in its generic cost of capital decision, and the AEUB”s 2005 generic rate of return on
common equity of 9.50% for each of the test years. A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is
not expected until early in 2006. In June 2005, ATCO Gas filed an application requesting interim refundable rates
pending the AEUB’s decision on the general rate application. A decision by the AEUB on the interim rate
application is expected in the third quarter of 2005. " : . '
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In October 2001, the AEUB approved the sale by ATCO Gas of certain properties in the City of Calgary, known as
the Calgary Stores Block, for $6.6 million (excluding costs of disposition) and allocated $4.1 million of the proceeds
to customers and $1.8 million to ATCO Gas. In January 2004, the Alberta Court of Appeal overturned this decision
and directed the AEUB to allocate $5.4 million of the proceeds to ATCO Gas. The City of Calgary has appealed
this decision to the Supreme Court of Canada, which has also granted ATCO Gas leave to cross-appeal the decision.
The Supreme Court of Canada heard the appeal on May 11, 2005 and ATCO Gas is currently awaiting a decision.
Accordingly, ATCO Gas has not yet recorded the impact of the-Alberia Court of Appeal decision.

In March 2004, the AEUB directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve for the benefit of utility customers 16.7
petajoules of storage capacity at its Carbon storage facility for the 2004/2005 storage year, which ended .on March
31, 2005, and allowed ATCO Midstream to continue to utilize the remaining uncontracted capacity at a rate of $0.45
per gigajoule, up from $0.41 per gigajoule. ATCO Gas was granted leave to appeal this AEUB decision to the
Alberta Court of Appeal. On June 17, 2005 the appeal was dismissed.

In July 2004, the AEUBR initiated a written process to consider its role in regulating the operations of the Carbon
storage facility. On June 15, 2005, the AEUB issued a decision with respect to this process. In addition to
addressing other matters, the decision found that the AEUB has the authority, when necessary in the public interest,
to direct a utility to utilize a particular asset in a specific manner, even over the objection of the utility. ATCO Gas
has filed for leave to appeal the decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal.

ATCO Gas’ position is that the Carbon storage facility is no longer required for utility service. Accordingly, in
March 2005, ATCO Gas filed a letter with the AEUB in which it withdrew all evidence previously filed by it with
respect to the 2005/2006 Carbon Storage Plan, thus providing notice that none of the related costs and revenues will
form part of regulated operations on or after April 1, 2005. On March 23, 2005, the AEUB issued an interim order
directing ATCO Gas to maintain the Carbon storage facility in rate base and confirming a lease of the entire storage.
capacity to ATCO Midstream at a placeholder rate of $0.45 per gigajoule until otherwise determined by the AEUB.
ATCO Gas filed for leave to appeal the interim order on April 15, 2005.

ATCO Gas has filed an application with the AEUB to address, among other things, corrections required to historical
transportation imbalances that have impacted ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account. In April 2005, the AEUB issued a
decision resulting in a 15% decrease in the transportation imbalance adjustments sought by ATCO Gas. The
decision resulted in a decrease to revenues and earnings of $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively. The City of
Calgary has filed for leave to appeal the AEUB’s decision. ATCO Gas has filed a cross appeal of the AEUB’s
decision. The cross appeal is contingent upon the granting of the City of Calgary’s leave to appeal.

s

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

L

A major portion of the Corporation’s operating income and cash flow is generated from its utility operations.
Canadian Utilities and its wholly owned subsidiary, cu Inc use commercial paper borrowings and short term bank
loans to provide flexibility in the timing and amounts of long term financing. ATCO Ltd. has received dividends
from Canadian Utilities which have been more than sufficient to service debt requirements and pay dividends.

Cash flow from operations for the three months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $23.5 million to $124.9 million,
primarily due to:
o reduced availability penalty payments in 2005 due to shorter planned outages at the Battle River and
Sheerness generatlng plants in Alberta Power (2000)

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ impact of the amortization of the TXU Europe settlemcnt n ATCO Power.

Cash flow from operations for the six months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $94.8 million to $371.9 million,
primarily due to:
*  impact of the TXU Europe settlemem in ATCO Power and
¢ increased availability incentives in Alberta Power (2000), pnmarlly due to avallablhty incentive payments
received for improved plant availability.
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Investing for the three and six months ended June 30, 2003, decreased by $23. 2 million to $91.2 million, and by
$29.5 million to $219.3 million, respectively, primarily due to:

e Jower capital expenditures; and :

o increased proceeds from transfer of retail energy supply businesses.

These decreases were partrally offset by: :
e changes in non-cash working capital in respect of investing act1v1tles.

Capital expenditures for the three and six. months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $27.2 million to. $138.9
million, and- by $54.2 million to $243 .4 million, respectively, primarily due to: .
e -lower investment in power generation and regulated e]ectnc transmission projects.

These decreases were pamal]y offset by:

e increased investment in regulated natural gas and electric distribution and natural gas transportation
projects and in workforce housing and space rental assets. . Lo

During the three months ended June 30 2005, the Corporatron issued:.
*  $0.2 million of long term debt. ‘

During the three months ended June 30, 2005, the Corporation redeemed:
o $125.0 million of 8.43% Debentures 1995 Series;
¢  $7.1 million of other long term debt; and
¢ $9.0 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $140.9 million.

During the six months ended June 30, 2005, the Corboratio‘n issued:
e $44.8 million of long term debt.

Durmg the six months ended June 30, 2005, the Corporatlon redeemed
e $125.0 million of 8.43% Debentutes 1995 Seriés;
e $12.4 million of other long term debt; and
e $28.9 million of non-recourse long term debt

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $121.5 million.
Contractual obligations disclosed in the 2004 MD&A remain substantially unéHan'éed‘as at June30, 2005.

At June 30, 2003, the Corporatlon had the followmg credrt lines that enable it to obtam fundmg for general corporate
purposes. r

Total Used Available

($ Millions)

Long term committed ....ooovviierniiiiii s s 588.5 105.5 483.0
Short term committed................ TR e ettt 6143 16.6 : 597.7
UNCOMITULIE ..ovvvrievieeveeieete e er i ee st st st st sbe e ereesneenbssanes 116.7 329 83.8

TOAL et e 1,319.5 155.0 1,164.5

The amount and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporation.

Net current and long term future income tax liab’ilities‘ of $221.4 million at June 30, 2005, are attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These
differences result primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in different years for financial and tax reporting
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purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such d1fferences are reversed through the settlement of
liabilities and realization of assets. ‘

On May 27, 2004, the Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the
outstanding Class I shares. The bid expired on May 26, 2005. Over the life of the bid, 152,000 shares were
purchased, of which 131,000 were purchased in 2004 and 21,000 were purchased in 2005. On May 27, 2003, the
Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the outstanding Class I shares.
The bid will expire on May 26, 2006. From May 27, 2003, to July 22, 2005, 21,000 shares have been purchased.

For the first two quarters of 2005, the quarterly dividend payment on the Corporation’s Class I and Class II shares
increased by $0.03 to $0.38 per share. The Corporation has. increased its annual common share dividend each year
since 1993. The payment of any dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial
condition of the Corporation and other factors.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At July 22, 2005, the Corporation had outstanding 26,503,240 Class I shares and 3,483,942 Class II shares and
6,000,000 5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares Series 3.

At July 22, 2005, options to purchase 877,300 Class I shares were outstanding.

BUSINESS RISKS

On February 16, 2005, the Kyoto Protocol came into effect. The Corporation is unable to determine what impact the
protocol may have on its operations as the Government of Canada has not yet provided industry specific details for
its 2005 Climate Change Plan. It is anticipated that the Corporation s power purchase arrangements relating to its
coal-fired generating plants will allow the Corporatlon to recover any increased costs associated with the
1mplementat10n of the protocol.

A number of U.S. insurance companies are the subject of lawsuits and investigations into their business and
accounting practices by the Attorney General of the State of New York and the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commussion. Certain of these insurers provide a portion of the Corporation’s insurance coverage. The Corporation
is unable at this time to determine what impact, if any, these investigations may have on the ability of the insurers
mentioned to pay any corporate insurance claims which may arise.

Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which administers acts and
regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and service area. The
AFUB may approve interim rates, subject to final determination. These subsidiaries are subject to the normal risks
faced by companies that are regulated. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer rates that permit
a reasonable opportunity to recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return
on rate base. The Corporation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to eamn the approved
rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric have transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of
natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain events (including where DEML fails to supply
natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee, supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO I-Tek Business Services in respect of the
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ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurance that the
coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the event of a reversion
of such functions.

Canadian Utilities has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations in respect of the ongoing relationships to DEML contemplated under the
transaction agreements. ; o r
As a result of the agreements with DEML, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric are no longer involved in arranging for
the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will continue to own the assets and provide the
transportation and distribution-services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of service
and a fair return. ‘ . o

Late Payment Penalties on Utility Bills

As a result of recent decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition
of late payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at
this time the impact, if any, that these decisions will have on the Corporation.

[

Alberta Power (2000)

As a result of unprecedented drought conditions, the water levels in the cooling pond used by the Battle River
generating plant in its production of electricity had fallen to all-time lows in early 2003 and in 2004 and the
Corporation was forced to curtail production of electricity. Water levels in the cooling pond have returned to normal
for this time of year and there has been no curtailment of production to date in 2005. ‘

On June 10, 2005, Alberta Environment armounced that it will begin to implement mercury emission standards for
coal-fired generating plants through a new provmc1a1 regulation that 1s expected to be in place in late 2005. Owners
of coal-fired generating plants are required to submit proposals on capturing at least 70% of the mercury in the coal
burned in their plants by March 2007. Technology for mercury emission reduction must be in place by the end of
2010. It i1s anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchase arrangements relating to its coal-fired generating
plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with complying with the new regulation.

v
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Non-Regulated Operations
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads can be very volatile, as shown in
the following graph, which illustrates a range of prices experienced during the period January 2000 to June 2005.

Alberta Power Pool Prices, Natural Gas Prices and Spark Spreads
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Changes in Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads may have a significant
impact on the Corporation’s eamings and cash flow from operations in the future. It is the Corporation’s policy to
continually monitor the status of its non-regulated electrical generating capacity that is not subject to long term
commitments.
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ATCO Midstream

Timing, capacity and demand of ATCO Midstream’s storage business as wel] as changes in market conditions may
impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from storage operations.

ATCO Midstream extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas streams at its extractlon ‘plants.
These products are sold under either long term cost of service arrangements or market based arrangements. Changes
in market conditions may impact the Corporanon s earnings and cash flow from natural gas liquids extraction
operations. e ; ,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Employee Future Benefits

The expected long term rate of return on pension plan assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis
of the long bond yield rate at the beginning of the year plus an equity and management premium that reflects the
plan asset mix. Actual balanced fund performance over a longer period suggests that this premium is about-1%,
which, when added to the long bond yield rate of 5.9% at the beginning of 2003, resulted in an expected long term
rate of return of-6.9% for 2005.. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return
assumptions for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, normal
equity risk premiums, and asset diversification effect on portfolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the
market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the
preceding three years. The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past four years, from 8.1% in
2001 to 6.9% in the six months ended June 30, 2005. The result has been a decrease in the expected return on plan
assets and a corresponding jncrease in the cost of pension benefits. In addition, the actual return on plan assets over
the same period has been lower than expected (i.e., an experience loss), which is also contributing to an increase in
the cost of pension benefits as losses are amortized to earnings.

The liability discount rate that is used to calculate the cost of benefit obligations reflects market interest rates on
high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments. The liability discount
rate has also declined over the same four year period, from 6.9% at the end of 2001 to 5.9% at the end of 2004; the
rate has remained at 5.9% in the six months ended June 30, 2005. The result has been an increase in benefit
obligations (i.e., an experience loss) Wthh is contributing to an mcrease in the cost of pension benefits as ]osses are
amomzed to earnings. -

\ .

In accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amortize cumulative experience gains and losses in
excess of 10 percent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the
Corporation began amortizing a portion of the net cumulative experience losses on plan assets and accrued benefit
obligations in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment benefit plans and continued- this
amortization during the three and six months ended June 30, 2005. -

The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment
benefit obligations in the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, are as follows: for drug costs, 9.3% starting in
2005 grading down over 8§ years t0 4.5%, and for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for 2005 and thereafter.
Combined with higher claims experience, the effect of these changes has been to increase the costs of other post
employment benefits. » ‘

The effect of changes in these estimiates and assumptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs of
employee future benefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit plans
expense or income is unrecognized by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000).
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) guideline pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities. The guideline requires the
Corporation to identify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary
beneficiary of such entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the
consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA recommendations pertaining to the

classification of retractable or mandatorily redeemable shares. The recommendations require the Corporation to
" classify a contractual obligation as a liability when the number of the Corporation’s own shares required to settle the

obligation varies with changes in their fair value so that the Corporation may have to deliver more or fewer of its

shares than would have been the case at the date of entering into the obligation. The Series 3 Preferred Shares

represent such an obligation in that each Series 3 Preferred Share will on and after December 1, 2011, be convertible

at the option of the owner into that number of the Corporation’s Class I shares determined by dividing $25.00
" together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the then current market price of
the Class 1 shares. Consequently, the equity preferred shares have been reclassified 1o preferred shares in the
balance sheet and the dividends on equity preferred shares have been reclassified to dividends on preferred shares in
the statement of earnings.

July 22, 2005
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V7 T N A FILE NO. 82-34745
LS FOR THE S1x MONTHS ENDED '
o A JUNE 30, 2005 '
TO THE SHARE OWNERS:

ATCO Ltd. reported a 7% increaéé in‘eérniwng‘s for the three months ended June 30, 2005 compared to same
period in 2004, excluding the impact of the retail sale gain. o

Second quarter earnings were $2é 1 million ($0. 94 perv share) compafed to $26.3 million ($0.88 per share)'fbf the
same peériod in 2004, excluding the one-time $28.5 million gain from the retail sale by ATCO Gas and ATCO
Electric of their energy supply businesses to Direct Energy Second quarter 2004 earnings were $54.8 rmlhon

($1.84 per share) including the one-time retail sale gain: | ‘ S .
Financial Summary For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30" -
2005 2004 2008 2004
($ Millions except per share data)
(unaudited)
REVENUES ....oviiiiecieeeiiic ettt e ettt teeeatee e eesraeenresstbesbeee e 630.5 731.2 1,445.1 1,957.6
BaTNINES c.vovveeevcvere ettt ettt 28.1 54.8 70.7 93.0
Earnings excluding the retail sale gain ............ccovvvnrerrrcrneieneeeens 28.1 26.3 70.7 64.5
Earnings per Class I and IT share .......c...occieienniciiniccincccciennen 0.94 1.84 2.36 3.12
Earnings per Class I and II share excluding retail sale gain............... 0.94 0.88 2.36 2.16
Cash flow from OPerations.........cocueeeerrveieririreversseiseseeteseeieseenensens 124.9 101.4 371.9 277.1

Revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005 decreased primarily due to Direct Energy assuming
responsibility for selling natural gas and electricity to customers since the completion of the retail sale in the second
quarter of 2004.

Earnings for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the retail sale gain, increased
primarily due to:

¢ improved business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada, Australia, South America and the
United States;

o higher earnings in ATCO Midstream;

o the impact in 2005 of the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (AEUB) decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002
revenue requirements for changes in deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric;
the impact of the previously announced TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power; and
increased business activity, including work for new customers in ATCO I-Tek.

The improved earnings were partially offset by:

o higher capital expenditures and operations and maintenance costs incurred in 2005 by ATCO Gas that are
not reflected in current customer rates. ATCO Gas has filed an application requesting the AEUB to
incorporate these higher costs in customer rates;

¢ increased share appreciation rights expense due to higher share prices; and

» warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.
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Cash flow from operations for the three months ended June 30, 2005 increased primarily due to decreased
availability penalties related to planned and unplanned outages in Alberta Power (2000). Cash flow from
operations for the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased primarily due to the impact of the TXU Europe

settlement and ineregsed availability incentives in Alberta Power (2000).

Second Quarter Other Highlights include:

ATCO Frontec was awarded a contract from NATO Maintenance and Supply Agency in Luxembourg to
provide the operations and maintenance of communications information systems in Bosnia.

ATCO Electric was the first Canadian company to be awarded the International Edison Award by the
Washington based Edison Electric Institute. The electricity industry’s most prestigious international award
worldwide was awarded for ATCO Electric’s leadership and innovation in the construction of the Dover to
Whitefish transmission line in 2004.

ATCO Noise Management announced a new contract that will utilize proprietary technology developed by
the company used to silence noise for the expansion of the world’s largest nitrogen production complex at
the Cantarell Nitrogen Project in Campeche, Mexico.

ATCO Group is celebrating Alberta’s Centennial with two major province-wide programs — ATCO Places
in Time, a historic traveling exhibit and a unique ATCO travel passport — both designed to ce]ebrate the
province’s history and showcase ATCO’s commitment to the 300 communities it serves. '

ATCO Group is an Alberta based, worldwide organization of companies with more than 7,000 employees activ'ély
engaged in Power Generation, Utilities and Global Enterprises. More information about ATCO can be found on its
website, www.atco.com.

A

@GP

N.C. Southern R.D. Southern
President & Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board
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ATCO Ltd.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS :
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”) ' "

The following discussion and analy51s of financial condition.and results of operations of ATCO Ltd. (the
“Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the Corporanon s unaudtted interim financial statements for the
six months ended June 30, 2005, and the audtted ﬁnanCIal statements and management’s discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 (“2004 MD&A”). Information
contained in the 2004 MD&A that is not discussed in this document remains substantially unchanged. Additional
information relating to the Corporation, including the Corporation’s Annual Informatlon Form, is available on
SEDAR at www.sedar. com. .

The equlty securities of the Corporatlon consist of Class I Non Votm0 Shares (“Class I shares™) and Class II Voting
Shares (“Class II shares™).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ATCO Ltd. and all of its subsidiaries. The principal
subsidiaries are Canadian Utilities Limited (“Canadian Utilities™), of which ATCO Ltd. owns 39.9% of the Class A
non-voting shares and 74.2% of the Class B common shares, for an aggregate ownership of 51.8%, and ATCO
Structiires Inc. (“ATCO Structures”), ATCO N01se Management Ltd. (“ATCO Noise ‘\/Ianagement”) and ATCO
Resources Ltd. (*ATCO Resources™), of which ATCO Ltd. owns 100% of the Class A’ non- -voting and Class B
common shares. Canadian Utilities has published its comparative financial statements and its management’s
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for six months ended June 30, 2005. Copies
of these documents may be obtained upon request from the Corporate Secretary of Canadian Utilities at 1400 ATCO
Centre, 909-11™ Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R N6 (telephone (403) 292-7500 or fax (403) 292-7623).
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward-leoking statements. Forward-looking statements are
often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as “enticipate”, “plan”, “estimate”, “expect”, “may”,
“will”, “intend”, “should”, and simiiar expressions. These statemenrts involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in
such forwarc-looking staiements. The Corporation believes that the expecteticis reflected in the forward-looking
statements ars reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove 0 be correct and such

forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements pertaining to purchase obligations, planned capital
expenditures, the impact of changes in government regulation, non-regulated generating capacity subject to long
term contracts and Industrials Business Group market developments. The Corperation’s actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, competitive
factors in the industries in which the Carporation operates, prevailing economic conditions, and other factors, many
of which are beyond the control of the Corperation.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from three Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation
and Global Enterprises. For the purposes of financial disclosure, industrial transactions (ATCO Structures and
ATCO Noise Management) are accounted for as Industrials and corporate transactions are accounted for as
Corporate and Other (refer to Note 6 to the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended June 30,
2095). Transactions between Business Groups are eliminated in all reporting of the Corporation’s consolidated
finaricial information.

TRANSFER OF THE RETAIL ENERGY SUPPLY BUSINESSES

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of Centrica plc (“Transfer of the
Retail Energy Supply Businesses™). Proceeds of the transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at
clasing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005. Net proceeds, after adjustments related to legal, transition and
other deferred costs pertaining to the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3
million before income taxes of $8.2 million and non-controlling interests of $26.6 million, and increased earnings by
$28.5 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2004.

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004, were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued to purchase natural gas on
beha!f of DEML, until the transfer of the relevant ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004. There will be nc ongoing impact on earnings resulting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historicelly been sold to customers on a “no-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue tc own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used to
deliver energy.

TXU EUROPE SETTLEMENT

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by the 1,000
megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power Limited
(“Barking Power”), has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of contract
related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating plant.
Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement has now been reached with respect to Barking Power’s
claim. On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million
(approximately $410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104
million. Barking Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30,
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2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. An income tax payment of $15.3 million relating to the
Corporation’s first distribution was made in April 2005. The Corporation expects to receive further distributions
later this year and in the first quarter of 2006. The Corporation’s share of this settlement is expected to generate
earnings after income taxes and non-controiling interests of approximately $35 million, which will be recognized
over the remaining term of the TXU contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $5.5 million per year.

The Barking generating plant has continued to supply 725 megawatts of power under long term contracts with other
purchasers. The 275 megawatts of power previously supplied to TXU Eurcope is currently being sold into the United
Kingdom electricity market on a merchant basis under a cne year marketing agreement expiring September 30,
2005. On July 4, 2005, this agreement was extended for an additional year to September 30, 2006.

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION

For the Three Months Ended

(8 Millions except per share data) Mar. 31 Jun, 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31
(unaudited)
2005
REVENUES (1) ooieirieeeree e e a e 814.6 630.5 i e,
Earnings attributable to Class [ and Class II shares (4) (5)........... 42.6 281 i e
Earnings per Class I and Class II share (4) (5)..covcoveievieneeiiennnnn. 1.42 0.94 i e,
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class I share (4) (5) ....ccceeee. 1.40 093 et e
2004 ’ '
ReVENUES (1) ooveiieeiis ettt et 1,226.4 731.2 597.0 716.4
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares (2) (4) (5) ..... 38.2 54.8 247 41.7
Earnings per Class [ and Class II share (2) (4) (5) .ocoovveievieennnnn 1.28 1.84 0.83 1.40
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class II share (2) (4) (5) ............ 1.26 1.82 0.83 1.38
2003
REVENUES ..ttt re s se bt ste s saesaesa b rrnes neeseesaeesanee sessesseessenne 652.8 966.5
Earnings attributable to Class I and. Class II shares (3) {4) (5\ ..................................... 22.5 42.5
Earnings per Class I and Class II share (3) (4) (5) coecvvniinniiniins et e 0.75 1.43
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class Il share (3} (43 (S) e et e 0.74 1.41
Notes:
(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and

(2)
(3)
4)
(5)

(6)

electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for :heir customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

Includes earnings of $28.5 million, earnings per share of $0.96 and diluted earnings per. sharo of $0.95 on the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businzsses for the three months ended June 30, 2004.

2003 earnings attributable to Class I and Class Il shares have been restated for retroactive changes in the
methods of accounting for asset retirement obligations and stock based compensation.

There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accountmg principles and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal factors that have caused variations ir revenues and earnings over the eight most recently completed
quarters disclosed in the 2004 MD&A remain substantially unchanged, except for the lower cost of service revenues
in Alberta Power (2000) from the H.R. Milner generating plact which was sold by the Alberta Balancing Pool on
January 29, 2004, and changes in market conditions which have impacted ATCO Midstream’s earnings from natural
gas liquids and storage operations.

Consolidated Operations

Revenues, earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares, and earnings and diluted earnings per share were as
follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions except per share data) 2005 2004 2005 2004
(unaudited)
ReVENUES (1) iiiieiiiieiiicicre e ettt et vt st e 630.5 731.2 1,445.1 1,957.6
Earrings attributable to Class I and Class II shares (2) {3) (4). ........ 28.1 54.8 70.7 93.0
Earnings per Class I shae and Class IT chare (2} (3) (4).vocvvevvvienicns 0.94 1.84 2.36 3.12
Diluted earnings per Class I share and Class II share (2) (3) (4) ....... 0.93 1.82 2.33 3.08

Notes: ‘

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Reztail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues sincz May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

(2)  Includes earnings of 328.5 million, earnings per share of $0.96 and diluted earnings per share of $0.95 on the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses for the three and six: months ended June 30, 2004.

(3) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(4)  Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(5) The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $100.7 million to $630.5 million, primarily due
to: '
¢ lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and
¢ Jower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:
e increased business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Australia, Europe, South America and the
‘ United States;

¢ improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s United Kingdom (“U.K.”) operations, natural gas fuel
purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis, and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement;

e higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold:;
increased business acti\'fity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek; and

e operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004, '
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Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $512.5 million to $1,445.1 million, primarily due

to:
L.

lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and
lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction-in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:

increased business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Australia, Europe, South America and
Canada;

higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold;

improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations and the impact of the TXU Europe
settlement;

increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek; and

operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004.

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the three months ended June 30, 2005, were $28.1 million
{($0.94 per share). Earnings for the corresponding period in 2004 were $26.3 million ($0.88 per share), excluding
the $28.5 million after-tax and non-controiling interests gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businzsses
in May 2004. Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2004, including the impact of the transfer of the retail
energy supply businesses, were $54.8 million (§1.84 per share).

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the three months ended Tune 30, 20035, excluding the
1mpact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, increased by $1.8 million, primarily due to:

improved business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Canada, Australia, South America and the
United States;

higher margins for natural gas liquids and higher storage earnings due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold;

the impact of the Alberta Energy and Ultilities Board (“AEUB”) decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002
revenue requirements for changes in deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory
Matters — ATCO Electric section);

the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and

increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

This increase was partially offset by:

higher costs in ATCO Structures operations in Europé;

increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices since March 31, 2005;

higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric that are not yet reflected in current
customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher depreciation and financing costs related
to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and increased operating costs. Rate applications
were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate these higher costs in customer rates (“Timing
of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric 2005 Rate Applications™) (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric
and ATCO Gas sections); and

warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the six months ended June 30, 2005, were $70.7 million
($2.36 per share). Earnings for the corresponding period in 2004 were $64.5 million ($2.16 per share), excluding
the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses. Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2004,
including the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, were $93.0 million ($3.12 per share).
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Earnings attributable to Class I and Class If shares for the six months ended June 30, 2005, exclading the
impact of the iransfer of the retail energy supply businesses, increase¢ by $6.2 million, primarily dus to: -

o improved business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Canada, Australia, South America and the
United States;

o higher margins for natural gas liquids and higher storage earnings due tc increased storage capacity scld in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity lzased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold;

o the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and

s the impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in
deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section).

Tiis increase was partially offset by:
e  higher costs in ATCO Structures operaiions in Europe;
¢ Timing of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric 2005 Rate Applications;
¢ increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices since December 31, 2004; and
e  warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Operating expenses (consisting of natural gas supply, purchased power, operation and maintenance, selling and
administrative and franchise fee costs) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $112.5
million to $409.7 million, and by $546.3 million to $941.0 million, respectively, primarily due to:
o lower costs of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Rerail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and
o lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

These decreases were partially offset by:
¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures; and
s higher operating costs at ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant and ATCO Power’s and ATCO
Resources’ Scotford generating plant and operations at their Brighton Beach generating plant which was
commissioned in July 2004.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $8.1
million to $80.8 million, and by $14.9 million to $168.4 million, respectively, primarily due to:
e  capital additions in 2005 and 2004.

Interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, incrcased by $4.4 million to $56.9 million and
by $8.8 million tc $114.5 million, respectively, primarily due to:
e interest on non-recourse financings for ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Brighton Beach generating
plant commissioned in July 2004; and
e interest on new financings issued in 2004 to fund capital expenditures in Utilities operations.

Interest and other income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2003, increased by $4.6 million to $11.9
million and by $6.4 million to $20.5 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ technical services income earned on a project in Indonesia by ATCO Structures;
¢ interest income on higher cash balances; and
¢ the recovery of ATCO Electric’s carrying costs and interest associated with the AEUB decision adjusting
the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred income taxes (refer to Regulatory Matters
— ATCO Electric section).

Income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, including the $8.2 million of income taxes

resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004, decreased by $8.5 million to $31.7
million, and by $3.1 million to $86.0 million, respectively.
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Income takes for the three months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting from
the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, decreased by $0.3 million to $31.7 mtilion, primarily due to:
e favorable one-time income tax adjustments in 2005.

The decrease was partially offset by:
e higher earnings.

Income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting from the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $5.1 million to $86.0 million, primarily due to:
e  higher earnings.

‘The interests of non-controlling share owners for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, including the
$26.6 million resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, decreased by $24.2 million to
$33.1 million, and by $21.4 million to $80.7 million, respectively.

The interests of non-controlling share owners for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the
$26.6 million resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $2.4 million, and by
$5.2 million, respectively, primarily due to:

e  higher earnings in Canadian Ultilities.

Segmented Information

Segmented revenues for the three and six months endgd June 30, 2005, were as follows:.

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions) 2005 2004 2005 - 2004
(unaudited)
UHHIES (1) eririer ittt ev e ettt s et 236.4 4134 668.6 1,297.7
POWEr GeNeration ........cccooiveerieinerniinere et s 192.9 157.3 387.9 330.5
Global Enterprises ......vcvvveeiereiiinieiineiierceeseere s eise e 166.5 245.9 324.6 521.6
INAUSIIIALS Lottt sa et ere et s enens 67.1 47.6 125.3 96.3
Corporate and OtheT........ccoooceierireiircic e eebenane 4.2 3.6 8.3 7.5
Intersegment eliminations .......cocoooviveviciisiisiiiiesc e (36.6) (136.6) (69.6) (296.0)
TOAL.....oiiiiiiiieciieteee ettt ettt ettt en 630.5 731.2 1,445.1 1,957.6

Note: '

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was inciuded in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.
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Segmented earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the three and six months ended Jurz 30, 20035,
were as follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions) 2005 2004 2005 2004
{unaudited)
UHHEES {11 eetieie ettt e te et et eeve st nat e saaees 8.1 36.3 31.1 62.2
Power Generation ...........c..oceceemiieiiiie e iinieeieeseesenies e esseee st sesae e 11.3 2.3 23.0 17.9
Global ENEIPIISES uveveiviceiiiiiieiieeese ettt evaenn o ocn 2.4 6.5 18.6 12.0
INAUSITIALS cvveiiiiccee e 3.1 2.6 7.3 6.1
Corporate and OtheT.........oceviiriiiiniiiin e 3.8 0.5) 9.2) (6.3)
Intersegment eliMinEtionS. . .c.ocoevereneriiiniressiesseecrenen e - 0.6 0.1) i.1
TTOUALL Lottt ettt ettt ete et ettt etreerbesiaenteeerseees 28.1 54.8 70.7 93.0

Note:
(1) Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2004, include earnings of $28.5 million from the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses. .

Utilities

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the three months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $177.0 million
to $236.4 million, primarily due to:

e lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis tv ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004;

»  lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCG Pipelires’ customers as a result of customers moving fer.
sales service (commodity and transpertation tevenues) (o (ransportation service onlv coniracts
(transportation revenue); and

e  warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas, which were 12 4% warmer than rcrmal, compared to 4.7% colder than
normal for the corresponding period ir: 2004.

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ the impact of the AEUB d=cision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue reguirements for changes in
deferred income taxes reccrded in ATCO Electric (vefer to Regulatory Matters -- ATCO Electric section).

Revenues for the six months 2nded Jume 30, 2005, decreased by $629.1 million to $668.5 million, primarily due to:

e lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers cn a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004;

s lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
sales service {commodity and . transportation revenues) to transportation service only contracts
{transportation revenue); and ‘

e warmer temperatures in ATCC Gas, which were 6.1% warmer than normal, compared to 0.2% colder than
nermal for the corresponding period i1 2004.

This decrease was partially offset by:
@ (e impact of the AEUB cecision adlustmg the 2001 znd 2002 revenuz requirements for changes in
Jeferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
¢ customer additions in ATCO Gas; and
o higher franchise fees.

Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2005, were $8.1 million. Earnings for the corresponding veriod in
2004 were $7.8 miilien, excluding the $28.5 million after-tax and non-controlling interests gain on the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004. Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2004, including
the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, were $36.3 million.
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Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply
businesses, increased by $0.3 million, primarily due to:
s the impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in
deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section).

This increase was partially offset by:
e Timing of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric 2005 Rate Applications; and
e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2005, were $31.1 million. Earnings for the corresponding period in
2004 were $33.7 million, excluding the $28.5 million after-tax and non-controlling interests gain on the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004. Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2004, mcludmg the
impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply businesses, were $62.2 million.

Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 20035, excluding the impact of the transfer of the retail energy supply
businesses, decreased by $2.6 million, primarily due to:

e  Timing of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric 2005 Rate Applications; and

e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

This decrease was partially offset by
e the impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for chanoes in
deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
and
e customer additions in ATCO Gas.

Power Generation

Revenues from the Power Generation Business Group for the three and six months ended June 30, 20085, increased
by $35.6 million to $192.9 million and by $57.4 million to $387.9 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s United Kingdom (“U.K.”") operations, natural gas fuel
purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis, and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and
s operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004.

Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $2.0 million to $11.3 million, primarily due to:
» improved merchant earnings in ATCO Power's U.K. operations and the impact of .the TXU Europe
settlement; and
e operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brlghton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004. é

This increase was partially offset by: :
decreased earnings in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations as a reselt of a planned outage
decrease in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ earnings of $0.9 million due to lower prices on
electricity sold to the Alber:a Power Pool and the related spark spread;.and
e impact of a favorable one-time income tax adjustment for ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Brighton
Beach generating plant in 2004.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the three months ended Jure 30, 2005, averaged $51.46 per
megawatt hour, compared o0 average prices of $60.15 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in
2004. Natural gas prices for the three months ended June 20, 2005, averaged $5.97 per gigajoule,
compared to average prices of $6.62 per gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2004. The consequence
of lower electricity prices and higher natural gas prices was an average spark spread of $(0.82) per
megawatt hour for the three months ended June 30, 2005, compared to $10.50 per megawatt hour for the
corrzsponding period in 2004. The impact. of the lower spark spreads was mitigated by lower generation
volumes in 2005.
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Spark spread is related to the difference between Alberta Power Pool electricity prices and e marginal
cost of producing electricity from natural.gas.

Changes in spark spread affect the results of approximately 370 megawatts of plant capacity owned in
Alberta by ATCO Power and ATCC Resources oui of a total world widz owned capacity of apprcximately
1,539 megawatts.

Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $5.1 millicn to $23.0 million, primarily due to:
e the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and :
e operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Rasources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant
commissioned in July 2004.

This increase was partially offset by:
e impact of favorable one-time income tax adjustments in-20C4; and
o decrease in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ earnings of $1.2 million due to lower prices on
eiectricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool and the related spark spread.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the six months ended June 20, 2005, averaged $48.73 per
megawatt hour, compared to average prices of $54.48 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in
2004. Natural gas prices for the six months ended June 30, 2005, averaged $5.76 per gigajoule, compared
to average prices of $6.35 per gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2004. The consequence of lower
electricity prices and higher natural gas prices was an average spark sprezad of $(1.94) per megawatt hour
for the six months ended June 30, 2005, compared to $5.82 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period
in 2004. The iripact of the lower spark spreads was mitigated by lower generation volumes in 2005.

During the three months ended June 30, 2005, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
decreased by $4.9 million to $47.3 million. The decrease was primarily due to planned outages. During the thaz.
months ended June 30, 2005, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by
$0.3 miltion to $2.0 miilion.

During the six months ended June 30, 2005, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
increased by $1.2 million to $47.3 million. The increase was primarily due to additional availability incentive
payments received for improved lant availability, partially offset by planned outages. During the six months ended
June 30, 2005, the amortization of Zeferred availability incentives, recerded in revenues, increased by $0.4 million
to $4.1 million.

lobal Enterprises

Revenries from the Glebal Enterprises Busin=ss Group for the three and six menths ended June 30, 2005, decreased
by $79.4 million tc $166.5 reillion, end by $197.0 million to $324.6 milion, respectively, primarily due to:
e lower volumes of natural gas purchased in ATCO Midstream for ATCO Gas as a result of the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Busineszes; and
s+ lower voiunes of nziural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

These decreases were partially offset by:

e higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold; and

e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

Earnings for the three and six months enced June 30, 2005, increased by $2.9 million to $9.4 million, and by $6.6
million to $18.0 rillion, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ higher margins for natural gas liquids and higher storage earnings due to increased storage capacity sola in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold; and
s increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO [-Tek.
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Industrials

Revenues from the Industrials segment for the three months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $19.5 million to
$67.1 million, primarily due to:
¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Australia, Europe, South America and the
United States.

Revenues from the Industrials segment for the six months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $29.0 million to
$125.3 million, primarily due to:
¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Australia, Europe, South America and
Canada.

This increase was partially offset by:
o decreased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in the United States.

Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2003, increased by $0.5 million to $3.1 million, and by $1.2
million to $7.3 million, respectively, primarily due to:
e increased business activity in ATCO Structures.

Corporate and Other

Earnings for the three and six menths ended June 30, 2003, decreased by $2.3 million to ($3.8) million, and by $2.9
million to ($9.2) million, respectively, primarily due to:
e increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices since March 31, 2005.

ATCOR Resources Ltd. Income Tax Reassessment

On March 3, 2005, the Supreme Court of Canada dismissed the Corporation’s application for leave to appeal and
decided not to hear the Corporation’s appeal of a $6.7 million income tax reassessment relating to its 1996 disposal
of ATCOR Resourc_:es Ltd. (“ATCOR™).

In 2001, the Corporation received and paid an income tax reassessment of $8.4 million relating to the 1996 disposal
of ATCOR. The Corporation did not agree with this reassessment and appealed the maiter to the courts.

In August 2003, the Corporation was successful in its appeal to the Tax Court of Canada. The Federal Government
appealed the Tax Court’s decision to the Federal Court of Appeal, which issued a deciston cu June 18, 2004, in
favor of the Corporation for $1.7 million of the $8.4 million reassessment. The Federal Government did not appeal
the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. The Corporation completed its application
for leave to appeal the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court ef Canada in Ociober 2004. -

Due to the uncertainty as to whether the Supreme Court of Canada would hear the Corporation’s appeal, the
Corporation charged $6.7 million to earnings in its 2004 consolidated financial statements. Therefore, there will be
no material effect to the Corporation’s 2005 consolidated financial statements as a result of the Supreme Court of
Canada’s decision to not hear the Corporation’s appeal.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operations are conducted by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT), Northland
Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and
Pipelines Ltd. and the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), all of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of
Canadian Utilities’ wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc.

In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision. The decision established a standardized approach

for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of return on common equity based upon a
return of 9.60% on common equity. This rate of return will be adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term
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Canada bond yield as forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average difference between the
10 year and 30 year Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported in the National Post. This acjustment
mechanism is the same as the National Energy Board uses in determining its formula based rate of return. The
AEUB will undertake a review of this mecharnism for the year 2009 or if the rate of return resulting from the formula
is less than 7.6% or greater than 11.6%. The AEUR also noted that any party, at any time, could petition for a
review of the adjustment formula if that party can demonstrate a material change in facts or circumstances.

The decision also established the appropriate capital structure for each utiiity regulated by the AEUB. The AEUB
determined that .any proposed changes to the approved capital structure which result from a material change in the
investment risk of a utility will be addressed at utility specific rate applications.

In November 2004, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 9.50% for 2005. The AEUB also
announced that the 2005 generic return on equity would only apply to utilities which file rate applications in 2005.
If no rate applications are filed, then existing return on common equity rates will contirue to apply.

In July 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric filed applications with the AEUB addressing the impact on the 2003
and 2004 revenue requirements of the transfer of the retail energy supply business to DEML and the customer care
volume forecast for services provided by ATCQ I-Tek Business Services for 2003 and 2004. In April and May
2005, the AEUB issued decisions which resulted in an increase to revenues and earnings of $2.4 million and $1.6
million, respectively.

In June 2005, as part of their rate applications, ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas submitted a filing to the AEJB that
addressed certain comroon matters. ATCO Pipelines is aiso a party te this filing as the concerns are common to all
three utilities. This filing included evidence regarding the appropriate ratemaking approach in the determination of
utility revenue requirements as well as treatment of deferred pension cosis, executive compensation, head office rant
expense and the continued use of preferred shares as a form of financing for the three utilities. The AEUB has not
yet set a process for the filing and a decision is not expected until early in 200€.

ATCO Electric

In May 2005, ATCG Electric filed 2 general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2005 and 2006 test years
requesting, arnong other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
essociated with increased rate btase in Alberta. The application is based on common equity ratios of 33% for
transmission operations and 37% for distribution operations, as established by the AEUB in its generic cost of
capital decision, ard the AEUB’s 2005 generic rate of return on commen equity of 9.50% for each cf the test years.
A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not expected until early in 2006. In May and June
2005, ATCO Electric filed applications requesting interim refundable rates for distribution and transmission
operations, pending the AEUB’s decision on the general tariff apgpiication. On July 14, 2005, ATCO Electric
received a decision from the AEUB approving its requested interim refundable rates for distribution operations. A
decision by the AETB on the interim rate application for transmission operations is expected in the third quarter of
2005.

In August 2002, the AEUB issued a decision in which it denizd ATCO Electric’s application to adjust its 2001 and
2002 transmission and distribution revenue requirements by $4.6 million for changes in the amounts of deferred
income taxes reccrded. In November 2002, ATCO Electric filed a review and variance application of the August
2002 decision with the AEUB. In May 2005, the AEUB changed its August 2002 decision and allowed ATCO
Electric to increase its revenues and earnings by $4.6 million.

ATCO Gas

In May 2005, ATCO Gas filed a gereral rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. The aprlication is based on a common squity ratio of 38%, as
established by the AEUB in its generic cost of capital decision, and the AEUB’s 2005 generic rate of return on
common equity of 9.50% for each of the test years. A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff applicaticn is
not expected until early in 2006. In June 2005, ATCC Gas filed an application requesting interim refundable rates
pending the AEUB’s decision on the general rate application. A decision by the AEUB on the interim rate
application is expected in the third quarter of 2005.

14 ATCO



In October 2001, the AEUB approved the sale by ATCO Gas of certain properties in the City of Calgary, known as
the Calgary Stores Block, for $6.6 million (excluding costs of disposition) and allocated $4.1 million of the proceeds
to customers and $1.8 million to ATCO Gas. In January 2004, the Alberta Court of Appeal overturned this decision
and directed the AEUB to allocate $5.4 million.of the proceeds.to ATCO Gas. The City of Calgary has appealed
this decision to the Supreme Court of Canada, which has also granted ATCO Gas leave to cross-appeal the decision.
The Supreme Court of Canada heard the appeal on May 11, 2005 and ATCO Gas is currently awaiting a decision.
Accordingly, ATCO Gas has not yet recorded the impact of.the Alberta Court of Appeal decision.

In March 2004, the AEUB directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve for the benefit of utility customers 16.7
petajoules of storage capacity at its Carbon storage facility for the 2004/2005 storage year, which ended on March
31, 2005, and allowed ATCO Midstream to continue to utilize the remaining uncontracted capacity at a rate of $0.45
per gigajoule, up from $0.41 per gigajoule. ATCO Gas was granted leave to appeal this AEUB decision to the
Alberta Court of Appeal. On June 17, 2005 the appeal was dismissed.

In July 2004, the AEUB initiated a written process to consider its role in regulating the operations of the. Carbon
storage facility. On June 15, 2005, the AEUB issued a decision with respect to this process. In addition.to
addressing other matters, the decision found that the AEUB ha$ the authority, when necessary in the public interest,
to direct a utility to utilize a particular asset in a specific manner, even over the objection of the utility. ATCO Gas
has filed for leave to appeal the decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal.

ATCO Gas’ position is that the Carbon storage facility is no longer required for utility service. Accordingly, in
March 2005, ATCO Gas filed a letter with-the AEUB in which it withdrew all evidence previously filed by it with
respect to the 2005/2006 Carbon Storage Plan, thus providing notice that none of the related costs and revenues will
form part of regulated operations on or after April 1, 2005. On March 23, 2005, the AEUB issued an interim order
directing ATCO Gas to maintain the Carbon storage facility in rate base and confirming a lease of the entire storage
cepacity to ATCO Midstream at a placeholder rate of $0.45 per gigajoule until otherwise determined by the AEUB.
ATCO Gas filed for leave to appeal the interim order on April 15, 2005.

ATCO Gas has filed an application with the AEUB to address, among other things, corrections required to historical
transportation imbalances that have impacted ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account. In April 2005, the AEUB issued a
decision resulting in a 15% decrease in the transportation imbalance adjustments sought-by ATCO Gas:- - The
decision resulted in a decrease to revenues and earnings of $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively. The City of
Calgary has filed for leave to appeal the AEUB’s decision. ATCO Gas has filed a cross appeal of the AEUB’s
decision. The cross appeal is contingent upon the granting of the City of Calgary’s leave to appeal.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOU RCES

A major portion of the Corporation’s operating income and cash flow is generated from its utility operations.
Canadian Utilities and its wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc., use commercial paper borrowings and short term bank
loans to provide flexibility in the timing and amounts of long term financing. ATCO Ltd. has received dividends
from Canadian Ut'lities which have been more than sufficient to service debt requirements and pay dividends.

Cash flow from operations for the three months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $23.5 million to $124.9 million,
primarily due to: : »

e reduced availability penalty payments in 2005 due to shorter planned outages at the Battle River and
Sheerness generating plants in Alberta Power (2000).

This increase was partially offset by:
s impact of the amortization of the TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power.

Cash fiow from operations for the six months ended June 30, 2005, increased by $94.8 miliion to $371.9 million,
primarily due to:
e impact of the TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power; and
¢ increased availability incentives in Alberta Power (2000), primarily due to availability incentive payments
received for improved plant availability.
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Investing for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $23.2 million to $91.2 million, and by
$29.5 million to $219.3 million, respectively, primarily due to:

¢ lower capital expenditures; and

e increased proceeds from transfer of retail energy supply businzsses.

These decreases were partially offset by:
e changes in non-cash working capital in respect of investing activities.

Capital expenditures for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, decreased by $27.2 million to $138.9
aillion, and by $34.2 million to $243.4 million, respectively, primarily due to:
o lower investment in power generation and regulaced electric transmission projects.

These decreases were partially offset by:
e increased investment in regulated natural gas and electric distribution and natural gas transportation
projects and in workforce housing and space rental assets.

Daring the three months ended june 30, 2005, tne Corporation issued:
e $0.2 million of long term debt.

During the three months ended June 30, 2005, the Corporation redeemed:
e  $125.0 million of 8.43% Debentures 1995 Series;
¢  $7.1 million of other long term debt; and
¢  $9.0 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $140.9 million.

During the six months ended June 30, 2003, the Corporation issued:
e  $44.8 million of long term debt.

During the six months ended June 30, 2005, the Corporation redeemed:
e  $125.0 million of 8.43% Debentures 1995 Series;
e  $12.4 million of other long term debt; and
¢ $28.9 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $121.5 million.
Contractual obligations disclosed in the 2004 MD&A remain substantially unchanged as at June 30, 2005.

At June 30, 2005, the Corporation had the following credit lines that enable it to obtain funding for general corporate
purposes.

Total Used Available
($ Millions)
Long term committed.........ooveiiiiiineecrcrn e 588.5 105.5 483.0
Short term committed .........ccoeeeeviiiieeieiiieee e e e 614.3 15.€ 597.7
L0 TeTe) 41110111 <o R 116.7 32.9 83.8

Total. ooy e s 1,319.5 155.C 1,164.5

The amount and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporation.

Net current and long term future income tax liabilities of $221.4 million at June 30, 20C5, are atiributable to

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These
differences result primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in cifferznt years for financiai and tax reporting
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purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such differences are reversed through the settlement of
liabilities and realization of assets.

On May 27, 2004, the Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the
outstanding Class I shares. The bid expired on May 26, 2005. Over the life of .the bid, 152,000 shares were
purchased, of which 131,000 were purchased in 2004 and 21,000 were purchased in 2005. On May 27, 2005, the
Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the outstanding Class I shares.
The bid will expire on May 26, 2006. From May 27, 2005, to July 22, 2005, 21,000 shares have been purchased.

For the first two quarters of 2005, the quarterly dividend payment on the Corporation’s Class I and Class II shares
increased by $0.03 to $0.38 per share. The Corporation has increased its annual common share dividend each year
since 1993. The payment of any dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial
condition of the Corporation and other factors.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At July 22, 2005, the Corporation had outstanding 26,503,240 Class I shares and 3,483,942 Class II shares and
6,000,000 5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares Series 3.

At July 22, 2005, options to purchase 877,300 Class I shares were outstanding.

BUSINESS RISKS

On February 16, 2005, the Kyoto Protocol came into effect. The Corporation is unable to determine what impact the
rrotocol may have on its operations as the Government of Canada has not yet provided industry specific details for
its 2005 Climate Change Plan. It is anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchase arrangements relating to its
coal-fired generating plants wiil allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with the
implementation of the protocol.

A number of U.S. insurance companies are the subject of lawsuits and investigations into their business and
accounting practices by the Attorney General of the State of New York and the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission. Certain of these insurers provide a portion of the Corporation’s insurance coverage. The Corporation
is unable at this time to determine what impact, if any, these investigations may have on the ability of the insurers
mentioned to pay any corporate insurance claims which may arise.

Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which administers acts and
regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and service area. The
AEUB may approve interim rates, subject to final determination. These subsidiaries are subject to the normal risks
faced by companies that are regulated. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer rates that permit
a reasonable opportunity to recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return
on rate base. The Corporation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to earn the approved
rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric have transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of
natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain event$ (including where DEML fails to suppiy
natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric. '

Centrica plc, DEML’s parent, has provided a $300 millioa guarantee, supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO I-Tek Business Services in respect of the
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ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurancs tkat the
coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the event of a reversion
of such functions.

Canadian Utilities has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations in respect of the ongoing relationships to DEML conterplated under the
transaction agreements.

As a result of the agreemenis with DEML, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric are no longer involved in arranging for
the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will continue to own the assets and provide the
transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of service
and a fair return.

Late Payment Penalties on Utility Bills

As a result of recent decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition
of late payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Coivncration is unable to determine at
this time the impact, if any, that these decisicns will have on the Corporation.

Alberta Power (2000)

As a result of unprecedented drought conditions, the water levels in the cooling pond used by the Battle River
generating plant in its production of electricity had fallen to all-time lows in early 2003 and in 2004 and the
Corporation was forced to curtail production of electricity. Water levels in the cooling pond have returned to normal
for this time of year and there has been no curtailment of procuction to date in 2005.

On June 10, 2005, Alberta Environment announced that it will begin to implement mercury emission standards o~
coal-fired generating planis through a new provincial regulation that is expected to be in place in late 2005. Owners
of coal-fired generating plants are required to submit proposals on capturing at least 70% of the mercury in the coal
burned in their plants by March 2007. Technology for mercury emission reduction must be in place by the end of
2010. It is anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchass arrangements relating to its coal-fired generating
plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with complying with the new regulation.
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Non-Regulated Operations
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources

Alberta Power Pocl electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads can be very volatile, as shown in
the following graph, which illustrates a range of prices experienced during the perioc January 2000 to June 2005.
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Changes in Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads may have a significant
impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future. It is the Corporation’s policy to
continually monitor the status of its non-regulated electrical generating capacity that is not subject to long term
commitments.
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ATCO Midstream

Timing, capacity and demand of ATCO Midstream’s storage business as well as changes in market conditicnis may
impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from storage operations.

ATCO Midstream extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas streams at its extraction plants.
These products are sold under either long term cost of service arrangements or market based arrangements. Changes
in market conditions may impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from natural gas liquids extraction
operations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Employee Future Benefits

The expected long term rate of return on pension plan assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis
of the long bond yield rate at the beginning of the year plus an equity and management premium that reflects the
plan asset mix. Actual balanced fund performance over a'lcnger period suggests that this premium is about 1%,
which, when added to the long bond yield rate of 5.9% at the beginning of 2005, resulted in an expected long term
rate of return of 6.9% for 2005. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return
assumptions for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, normal
equity risk premiums, and asset diversification effect on portfolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the
market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the
preceding three years. The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past four years, from 8.1% in
2001 to 6.9% in the six months ended June 30, 2005. The result has been a decrease in the expected return on plan
assets and a corresponding increase in the cost of pension benefits. In addition, the actual return on plan assets over
the same period has been lower than expected (i.e., an experience loss), which is also contributing to an increase in
the cost of pension benefits as losses are amortized to earnings.

The liability discount rate that is used to calculate the cost of benefit obligations reflects market interest rates on
high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments. The liability discount
rate has also declined over the same four year period, from 6.9% at the end of 2001 to 5.9% at the end of 2004; the
rate has remained at 5.9% in the six months ended June 30, 2005. The result has been an increase in benefit
obligations (i.e., an experience loss), which is contributing to an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are
amortized to earnings.

In accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amortize cumulative experience gains and losses in
excess of 10 percent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the
Corporation began amortizing a portion of the net cumulative experience losses on plan assets and accrued benefit
obligations in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment benefit plans and continued this
amortization during the three and six months ended June 30, 2005.

The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment
benefit obligations in the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, are as follows: for drug costs, 9.3% starting in
2005 grading down over 8 years to 4.5%, and for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for 2005 and thereafter.
Combined with higher claims experience, the effect of these changes has been to increase the costs of other post
employment benefits.

The effect of changes in these estimates and assumptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs of

employee future benefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit plans
expense or income is unrecognized by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000).
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) guideline pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities. The guideline requires the
Corporation to identify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary
beneficiary of such entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the
consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA recommendations pertaining to the
classification of retractable or mandatorily redeemable shares. The recommendations require the Corporation to
classify a contractual obligation as a liability when the number of the Corporation’s own shares required to settle the
obligation varies with changes in their fair value so that the Corporation may have to deliver more or fewer of its
shares than would have been the case at the date of entering into the obligation. The Series 3 Preferred Shares
represent such an obligation in that each Series 3 Preferred Share will on and after December 1, 2011, be convertible
at the option of the owner into that number of the Corporation’s Class I shares determined by dividing $25.00
together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95%. of the then current market price of
the Class I shares. Consequently, the equity preferred shares have been reclassified to preferred shares in the
balance sheet and the dividends on eqmty preferred shares have been reclassified to dividends on preferred shares in
the statement of earnings.

July 22, 2005
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ATCOLTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Millions cf Canadian Dollars except per share data)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenues 2 $ 630.5 $ 731.2 $1,445.1 $1,957.6
Costs and expenses
Natural gas supply 2 52 190.2 134.4 753.9
Purchased power 2 10.3 26.0 22.8 71.6
Operation and maintenance 311.2 240.4 599.1 496.8
Selling and administrative 53.7 38.4 102.8 88.0
Depreciation and amortization 80.8 72.7 168.4 153.5
Interest 41.3 39.6 83.1 79.3
Interest on non-recourse long terra debt 15.6 12.9 314 26.4
Dividends on preferred shares 1 2.1 2.1 4.3 4.3
Franchise fees 29.3 27.2 81.9 77.0
549.5 649.5 1,228.2 1,750.8
81.0 81.7 216.9 206.8
Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses 2 - 633 - 63.3
Interest and other income 11.9 7.3 20.5 4
Earrings before income taxes and
non-controlling interests 92.9 152.3 237.4 284.2
Income taxes 317 40.2 86.0 £9.1
61.2 112.1 151.4 195.1
Non-controlling interests 33.1 57.3 80.7 102.1
Earaings attributable to Class ¥ and Class Il shares 2 28.1 54.8 70.7 93.0
Retained earnings at beginning of period ' 1,132.2 1,018.2 1,101.0 990.4
1,160.3 1,073.0 1,171.7 1,083.4
Dividends on Class I and Class II shaies 11.4 10.4 22.8 20.8
Purchase of Class I shares 2.5 4.4 2,5 4.4
Retained earn@at end of pericd $1,146.4 $1,058.2 $1,146.4 $1,058.2
Earnings per Class I and Class II share 4 $ 094 $ 1.84 $ 236 $ 312
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class 1I share 4 $ 093 $ 1.82 $ 233 $ 3.08
Dividends paid per Class I and Class II share $ 038 $ 035 $ 076 $ 070
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ATCOLTD.

CONSOLIDATED 3ALANCE SHEET

{Millions of Canadian Dollars)

June 30 December 31
Note 2005 2004 2004
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short term investments 7 $ 815.0 $ 6493 $ 760.9
Accounts receivable 356.4 395.5 430.8
Inventories 94.7 125.1 189.4
Income taxes recoverable 2.2 - -
Future income taxes 0.1 - 0.3
Deferred electricity costs 6.3 - -
Prepaid expenses 25.3 33.0 26.8
1,300.0 1,202.9 1,408.2
Property, plant and equipment 5,451.3 5,274.4 5,407.7
Goodwill 712 71.2 71.2
Security deposits for debt 22.0 243 23.1
Other assets 127.5 124.6 129.3
$6,972.0 $6,697.4 $7,039.5
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY
Corrent liabilities ‘
Bank indebtedness $ 28.0 $ 63 $ 112
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 316.8 342.5 340.3
Income taxes payable - 12.9 42.6
Future income taxes - 17.0 -
Deferred natural gas cost recoveries - 2.4 "C9
Deferred electricity cost recoveries - 32.8 11.7
Long term debt due within one year 4.0 12 5.9
Non-recourse long term debt due within one year 59.1 55.4 55.8
497.9 479.5 468.4
Future income taxes 221.5 2173 237.6
Deferred credits 7 228.9 109.2 163.0
Long term debt 2,124.9 1,980.8 2,215.3
Non-recourse long term debt 858.9 935.8 899.7
Preferred shares 1 150.0 " 150.0 150.0
Non-controlling interests 1,688.7 1,628.9 1,660.9
Class I and Class II share owners' equity
Class I and Class II shares 4 147.6 139.0 144.2
Contributed surplus 0.8 0.7 0.7
Retained earnings 1,146.4 1,058.2 1,101.0
Foreign currency translation adjustment 3.6) 3.0 (1.3)
'1,291.2 1,200.9 1,244.6
$6,972.0 $6,697.4 $7.039.5
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ATCO LTD.
CONMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of Cuxadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Operating activities
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares & 281 $ 54.8 $ 70.7 $ 93.0
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 80.8 72.7 168.4 153.5

Future income taxes ) 0.4 (1.0) 3.5 (1.6)

Norn-controlling interests 331 507 80.7 75.5

Gain on ransfer of retail energy supply businesses

- net of income taxes and non-controlling interesis 2 - {Z3.5) - (28.5)

Defterred availability incentives } 4.9) (26.2) 1.2 (21.1)

TXU Europe settlement - net of income taxes 7 (18.0) - 39.1 -

Other 5.4 1.9 8.3 6.3
Cash flow from operations ' 124.9 101.4 371.9 277.1
Changes in non-cash working capital (43.2) 15.4 83.6 176.7

81.7 116.8 455.5 453.8
Investing activities ‘
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (138.9) (166.1) (243.4) (297.6)
Proceeds on transfer of retail energy supply businesses '

- net of income taxes 2 43.4 22.5 43.4 225
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.4 57 1.5 8.5
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to piant 11.9 12.6 21.3 29.4
Non-current deferred electricity costs 2.0) (2.2) 8.3) (11.9)
Changes in non-cash working capital Q.7 13.9 (30.1) 4.1
Other 3.3) (0.8) 3.7) (3.8)

(91.2) (114.4) (219.3) (248.8)
Financing activities . _
Issue of long term debt 0.2 2.0 44.8 244.8
Issue of non-recourse long term debt - 4.7 - 12.5
Repayment of long term debt ' (132.1) (105.5) (137.4) (106.3)
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt 9.0) (6.5) (28.9) 25.4)
Issue (purchase) of Class A shares by subsidiary 0.6) (3.4) 0.8 2.4)
Issue (purchase) of Class I shares 0.5) (3.2) 0.8 (2.9)
Dividends paid to Class I and Class II share owners (11.4) (10.4) (22.8) (20.8)
Dividerds paid to non-controlling interests (25.7; (25.2) (51.5) (50.3)
Changes in non-cash working capital 0.2 0.5 14 2.0
Other 0.4) 1.0 (0.8) (1.4)
(179.3) (146.0) (193.6) 49.8
Foreign currency translation 4.0) (0.1) (5.3) 1.9
Cash position W
Increase (decrease) (192.8) (143.7) 373 256.7
Beginning of period ' 979.8 786.7 749.7 336.3
End of period $ 787.0 $ 643.0 $ 787.0 $ 643.0

D Cash position consists of cash and short term investments less current bank indebtedness, and includes
$125.2 million (2004 - $57.7 million) which is only availabie for use in joint ventures (see Note 7).
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ATCO LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005
(Unaudited, Tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)

1. Financial statement presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in the Corporation’s Financial Information contained in its 2004 Annual
Report. These interim financial statements have been prepared using the same accounting policies as used in the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, except as described below.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) guideline pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities. The guideline requires the
Corporation to identify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary
beneficiary of such entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the
consolidated financial statements for the three ard six months ended June 30, 2005.,

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA recommendations pertaining to the
classification of retractable or mandatorily redeemable shares. The recommendations require the Corporation to
classify a contractual obligation as a liability when the number of the Corporaiion’s own shares required to settie the
obligation varies with changes in their fair value so that the Corporaiion may have to deliver more or fewer of its
shares than would have been the case at the date of entering into the obligation. The Series 3 preferred shares
represent such an obligation in that each Series 3 preferred share will on and after December 1, 2011 be convertible
at the option of the owner into that number of the Corporation’s Class I Non-Voting shares determined by dividing
$25.00 together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the then current market
price of the Class I Non-Voting shares. Consequently, the equity preterred shares have been reclassified to preferred
shares in the balance sheet and the dividends on equity preferred shares have been reclassified to dividends on
preferred shares in the statement of earnings. '

Due to the seasonal nature of the Corpcration’s operaticns, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the timing of
rate decisions, the consolidated statements of earnimgs and retained earnings for the three and six monthe ended
June 30, 2005 and June 30, 2004 are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual basis.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
2. Transfer of retail energy supply businesses

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of Centrica plc. Proceeds of the
transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at closing, and thie remainder was paid on May 4, 2305.
Net proceeds, after adjustments related to legai, transition and other deferred costs pertaining to the transier of the
retail energy supply businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3 million before income taxes of $8.2 million and non-
controlling interests of $26.6 million and increased earnings by $28.5 million for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2004.

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004 were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent.to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued to purchase natural gas on
behalf of DEML until the transfer of the relevant ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004. There will be no ongoing impact on earnings resulting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “no-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used to
deliver energy.
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3. ATCOR Resources Ltd. income tax reassessment

On March 3, 2005, the Supreme Court of Canada dismissed the Corporatior’s application for leave to appeal and
decided not to hear the Corporation’s appeal of a $6.7 million income tax reassessment relating to its 1996 disposal
of ATCOR Resources Ltd. (“ATCOR”).

In 2001, the Corporation received and paid an income tax reassessiment of $8.4 million relating to the 1996 disposal
of ATCOR. The Corporation did not agree with this reassessment and appealed the matter to the courts.

In August 2003, the Corporation was successful in its appeal to the Tax Court of Canada. The Federal Government
appealed the Tax Court’s decision to the Federal Court of Appeal, which issued a decision on June 18, 2004 in favor
of the Corporation for $1.7 million of the $8.4 million reassessment. The Federal Government did not appeal the
Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. The Corporation completed its application for
leave (o appeal the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada in October 2004.

Due to the uncertainty as to whether the Supreme Court of Canada would hear the Corporation’s appeal, the
Corporation charged $6.7 million to earnings in its 2004 consolidated financial statements. Therefore, there will be
no material effect to the Corporation’s 2005 consolidated financial ciaterments as a result of the Supreme Court of
Canada’s decision to not hear the Corporation’s appeal.

4. Class I and Class II shares

There were 26,508,310 (2004 — 26,236,830) Class ¥ Non-Voting shares and 3,476,172 (2004 - 3,502,852) Class II
Voiing shares outstanding on June 30, 2005. In addition, there were 880,000 options tc purchase Class I Non-
Voting shares outstanding at June 30, 2005 under the Corporation’s stock option plan. From July 1, 2005, to
Jaly 22, 2005, no stock options were granted, 2,700 stock ortions were exercised, no stock options were cancelled
and no Class I Non-Voting shares have been prrchased unde1f the Corporation’s n.ormal course issuer bid.

The average number of shares used to calculate earnings per share are as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
_ 2005 2004 2005 2004
Weighted average shares outstanding 20,971.112. 20,785,522 29,955,070 29,794,764
Effect of dilutive stock options 384,943 417,118 363,439 435,318
Weighted average dilutive shares outstanding 30,356,055 30,202,651 30,318,509 30,230,082

5. Employee future benefits

In the three months ended June 30, 2003, net expense of $2.3 million (2004 ~ $0.7 million) was recognized for
pension benefit plans and net expense of $1.3 million (2004 — $1.3 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.

In the six months ended June 30, 2005, net expense of $4.8 miliion (2004 — $1.2 million) was recognized for

pension benefit plans and net expense of $2.5 million (2004 — $2.1 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.

26 - ATCO



6. Segmented information

Segmentzd results — Three months ended June 30

2005 Power Global Corporate  Intersegment
2004 Utilities  Generation  Enterprises  Industrials  and Other  Eliminations  Consolidated
Revenues ~ external $230.5 $192.9 $138.9 $67.1 $ 11 $ . $630.5
$408.2 $157.3 $117.1 $47.5 $ 11 $ - $731.2
Revenues — 59 - 27.6 - 31 - (36.6) -
intersegment 5.2 - " 1288 0.1 2.5 (136.6) -
Revenues $2364 31929 $166.5 $67.1 $ 4.2 $ (36.6) $630.5
$4134 $§157.3 $2459 $47.6 $ 3.6 $(136.6) $731.2
Earnings attributable ‘ ‘
to Class I and $ 8.1 $ 113 $ 94 $ 31 $(3.8) 3 - $ 281
Class II shares $ 36.3 $ 9.3 $ 65 $ 26 $(0.5) $ 06 $ 548

Segmented results — Six months ended June 30

2005 Power Global Corporate Intersegment
2004 Utilities  Generation  Enterprises  Industrials and Other Eliminations  Consolidated
Revenues - external  § 658.6 $ 3879 $271.2 $125.3 $ 21 8 - $1,445.1
$1,287.7 $ 3305 $241.2 $92 - $ 20 - $ - $1,957.6
Revenues - 16.0 - 534 - 6.2 (69.6) -
iniersegment 10.0 - 230.4 0.1 5.5 (296.0) -
Revenues $ 668.6 $ 3879 $324.6 $125.3 $ 83 $ (69.6) $1,445.1
$1,297.7 $ 3305 $521.6 $ 963 $ 7.5 $(296.0) $1,957.6
Earnings attributable ;
to Class T and $ 311 $ 230 $ 18.6 $ 73 $ 9.2 $ (0.) $ 707
Class IT shares $ 622 $§ 179 $ 120 $ 6.1 $ (6.3) $ 1.1 $ 930
Total assets $3,310.3 $2,461.3 $283.5 $234.6 $630.7 $ 516 $6,972.0
$3,247.3 $2,416.9 $300.2 $164.3 $501.8 $ 667 $6,697.4
Allocation of $ 465 $ 231 $ 1.6 $ - $ - $ - $ 712
goodwill $ 465 $ 231 $ 16 $ - $ - $ - $ 712

7. TXU Europe settlement

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by the
1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power
Limited (“Barking Power”), has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of
contract related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating
plant. Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement has now been reached with respect to Barking
Power’s claim.

On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million (approximately
$410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104 million. Barking
Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30, 2005, of which the
Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. An income tax payment of $15.3 million relating to the Corporation’s first
distribution was made in April 2005. The Corporation expects to receive further distributions later this year and in
the first quarter of 2006. The Corporation’s share of this settlement is expected to generate earnings after income
taxes and non-controlling interests of approximately $35 million, which will be recognized over the remaining term
of the TXU contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $5.5 million per year.

Printed in Canada
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ATCO LTD. & CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED

Corporate Head Office: 1400, 909 -11 Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 Telephone: (403) 292-7500 Fax: (403) 292-7623

July 25, 2005

ATCO REPORTS SECOND QUARTER OPERATIONAL EARNINGS INCREASE OF 7%

CALGARY, Alberta — ATCO Ltd. reported a 7% increase in earnings for the three months ended
June 30, 2005 compared to same period in 2004, excluding the impact of the retail sale gain.

Second quarter earnings were $28.1 million ($0.94 per share) compared to $26.3 million ($0.88 per share) for the
same period in 2004, excluding the one-time $28.5 million gain from the retail sale by ATCO Gas and ATCO
Electric of their energy supply businesses to Direct Energy. Second quarter 2004 earnings were $54.8 million
($1.84 per share) including the one-time retail sale gain.

Financial Summary For the Three Months For the Six Months
Ended June 30 Ended June 30
2005 2004 2005 2004
($ Millions except per share data)
(unaudited)
REVENUES. ..o, 630.5 731.2 1,445.1 1,957.6
Barnings....oovviriiiiiiiii e 28.1 54.8 70.7 93.0
Earnings excluding the retail sale gain ........................ 28.1 26.3 70.7 64.5
Earnings per Class Iand H share...................ooo 0.94 1.84 2.36 3.12
Earnings per Class I and II share excluding retail sale gain 0.94 0.88 2.36 2.16
Cash flow from operations............cocvvevevrriieinnnnanenes 124.9 101.4 371.9 277.1

Revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005 decreased primarily due to Direct Energy assuming
responsibility for selling natural gas and electricity to customers since the completion of the retail sale in the
second quarter of 2004.

Earnings for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2005, excluding the retail sale gain, increased
primarily due to:

e improved business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada, Australia, South America and the
United States;

e higher earnings in ATCO Midstream;

e the impact in 2005 of the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (AEUB) decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002
revenue requirements for changes in deferred income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric;

\
e the impact of the previously announced TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power; and P M*i“ Q

: - e - : e e,
o increased business activity, including work for new customers in ATCO I-Tek. L T9F T
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The improved earnings were partially offset by:

& higher capital expenditures and operations and maintenance costs incurred in 2005 by ATCO Gas that are
not reflected in current customer rates. ATCO Gas has filed an application requesting the AEUB to
incorporate these higher costs in customer rates;

® increased share appreciation rights expense due to higher share prices; and

® warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Cash flow from operations for the three months ended June 30, 2005 increased primarily due to decreased
availability penalties related to planned and unplanned outages in Alberta Power (2000). Cash flow from
operations for the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased primarily due to the impact of the TXU Europe
settlement and increased availability incentives in Alberta Power (2000).

Second Quarter Other Highlights include:

*» ATCO Frontec was awarded a contract from NATO Maintenance and Supply Agency in Luxembourg to
provide the operations and maintenance of communications information systems in Bosnia.

e ATCO Electric was the first Canadian company to be awarded the International Edison Award by the
Washington based Edison Electric Institute. The electricity industry’s most prestigious international
award worldwide was awarded for ATCO Electric’s leadership and innovation in the construction of the
Dover to Whitefish transmission line in 2004.

¢ ATCO Noise Management announced a new contract that will utilize proprietary technology developed
by the company used to silence noise for the expansion of the world’s largest nitrogen production complex
at the Cantarell Nitrogen Project in Campeche, Mexico.

o ATCO Group is celebrating Alberta’s Centennial with two major province-wide programs — ATCO
Places in Time, a historic traveling exhibit and a unique ATCO travel passport — both designed to
celebrate the province’s history and showcase ATCO’s commitment to the 300 communities it serves.

ATCO Ltd.’s consolidated financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition
and results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005 are now available on ATCO Ltd.’s
website (www.atco.com) or via SEDAR (www.sedar.com) or can be requested from the company.

The consolidated financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results
of operations will be mailed to those share owners who have requested such information on or about
July 28, 2005.

ATCO Group is an Alberta based, worldwide organization of companies with more than 7,000 employees actively
engaged in Power Generation, Utilities and Global Enterprises. More information about ATCO can be found on
its website, www.atco.com.

For further information, please contact:
K.M. (Karen) Watson

Senior Vice President &

Chief Financial Officer

ATCO Ltd.

(403) 292-7502
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Form 52-109FT2 - Certification of Interim Filings during Transition Period

I, Nancy C. Southern, President and Chief Executive Officer, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument

52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings) of
ATCO Ltd. (the issuer) for the period ending June 30, 2005;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is
necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under
which it was made, with respect to the period covered by the interim filings; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as
of the date and for the periods presented in the interim filings.

Date: July 22, 2005

[Original signed by N.C. Southern] \ O
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Corporate Office

Telephone: (403) 292-7547
Fax: (403) 292-7623
email: jnagrid.dunn@atco.com

August 4, 2005

Securities and Exchange Commission

Judiciary Plaza .
450-5" Street, NW b L
Washington, DC 20549 -

ATCO Ltd.
File No.: 82-34745 v,
Exemption Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)

Dear Sir or Madam:

is a copy of the followmg

» Corporation’s Form 5 - Declaratlon ef Dlwdends and Press Release (Stock Split)
As required pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b), the eXen‘iption number appears in the upper right-hand
corner of each unbound page and of the T’rst page of each bound document.
-“~)..,., ::('
Please indicate your receipt of the enclosed by stamping the enclosed copy of this letter and
returning it to the sender in the enclosed self-addressed, stamped envelope.

Regards,

7

Ingrid Dunn

Administrative Assistant

Corporate Secretarial Department

ATCO Ltd. and Canadian Utilities Limited
Phone: (403) 292-7547

Fax: (403) 292-7623

Email: ingrid.dunn@atco.com

Enclosure(s)
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FILE NO. 82-34745

Form 5 Submission - Dividend/Distribution Declaration

Issuer : Atco Ltd.

Security Symbol Amount  Currency  Declaration Date Record Date Payable Date
ACONV X .19 CAD 07/28/2005 . 09/14/2005 09/30/2005
ACOY 19 CAD 07/28/2005 09/14/2005 09/30/2005
ACOPR.A 359375 CAD 07/28/2005 08/10/2005 09/01/2005

Filed on behalf of the Issuer by:

Name:

Phone:

Email:
Submission Date:
Last Updated:

Leslie Lawson
403-292-7909
leslie.lawson@atco.com
07/28/2005 17:11:06
07/28/2005 17:11:06
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ATCO LTD. & CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED

Corporate Head Office: 1400, 809 -11 Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 Telephone: (403) 292-7500 Fax: (403) 292-7532

For Immediate Release

ATCO Ltd. Announces Stock Split and Declares Dividends

CALGARY, July 28, 2005 — ATCO Ltd. announces that its board of directors has approved a two-
for-one stock split of the outstanding Class I Non-Voting shares and Class II Voting shares. The
two-for-one share split will take the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners will receive
one additional Class I share for each Class I share held as of the record date and one additional
Class II share for each Class II share held as of the record date.

The stock dividend will be payable on September 15, 2005 to share owners of record at the close
of business on August 29, 2005. Share certificates representing the additional Class I shares and
Class II shares will be mailed to registered share owners on or after September 15, 2005. Existing
share certificates should be retained by the share owners and should not be sent to ATCO or its
transfer agent, CIBC Mellon Trust Company.

The Class I shares and Class II shares are expected to trade on a split ex-dividend basis on the
Toronto Stock Exchange on August 25, 2005.

The Corporation is undertaking the stock split to ensure that the Class I shares and Class II shares
remain accessible to individual share owners and to improve the liquidity of the market for the
Class I shares and Class II shares. No income tax will be payable by Canadian residents in respect
of the stock split, and the stock split will not dilute share owners' equity. All share and per share
data for future periods will reflect the stock split.

[more]




The board of directors of ATCO has also declared the following quarterly dividends:

- - TSX Stock Dividend Record Date Payment Date
Shares Symbol Per Share ($) (2005) (2005)
Class I Non-Voting ACO.NV.X 0.19 14-Sep 30-Sep
Class II Voting ACO.Y 0.19 14-Sep 30-Sep
5.75% Series 3 ACO.PR.A 0.359375 10-Aug 01-Sep

ATCO Group is an Alberta based, worldwide organization of companies with more than 7,000
employees actively engaged in Power Generation, Utilities and Global Enterprises. More
information about ATCO Ltd. can be found on its website, www.atco.com.

-30-

Contact: K.M. (Karen) Watson
Senior Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer
ATCO Ltd.
(403) 292-7502




